
GAUTENG PROVINCE
2017/18 

ANNUAL REPORT

a society with the
WE ENVISION

 of  SCIENCE & TECHNOLOGY
 in the GLOBAL WORLD 

CAPACITY TO COMPETE

and that is EQUIPPED with the 
SKILLS, ATTITUDES & VALUES 
needed to IMPROVE the quality of 
life of all South Africans.



01TABLE OF CONTENTS

01 02 03 04
INTRO &
OVERVIEW

CORE
BUSINESS

NON-CORE
BUSINESS

FINANCIALS 

FOREWORD BY THE MEC FOR 
EDUCATION IN GAUTENG
Mr Panyaza Lesufi

CHAIRPERSON’S REPORT
Mr Abbey Witbooi

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY BY  
THE CEO
Dr More Chakane

SCI-BONO DISCOVERY 
CENTRE OVERVIEW
Vision, mission & goals

02

04

06

08

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY BY
THE COO
Ms Tebogo Gule

SCIENCE CENTRE

EXHIBITRY

SCIENCE CAREER CENTRE

LEARNER SUPPORT

TEACHER TRAINING & 
DEVELOPMENT

ICT TRAINING & 
DEVELOPMENT

PROJECT MANAGEMENT
OFFICE

11

12

16

18

24

26

30

31

SUPPORT TO THE CORE 
FUNCTION
Mr Phehello Tsotetsi

FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION

ORGANISATIONAL 
STRUCTURE & STAFF PROFILE

MARKETING, EVENTS & 
COMMUNICATION 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

BOARD PROCUREMENT 
COMMITTEE

FINANCE, BUSINESS & HR 
COMMITTEE

SOCIAL & ETHICS COMMITTEE

33

34

36

39

42

45

46

47

GENERAL INFORMATION

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ 
REPORT 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

COMPANY SECRETARY’S 
REPORT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

THANK YOU TO OUR DONORS

49

50

51

53

53

54

55

59

65

87

SCI-BONO DISCOVERY CENTRE ANNUAL REPORT | TABLE OF CONTENTS



02FOREWORD

MR PANYAZA LESUFI
MEC FOR EDUCATION



03

The Sci-Bono Discovery Centre is a 
significant partner of the Gauteng 
Department of Education (GDE) and has, 
over time, strengthened the GDE’s capacity 
to implement successful educational 
innovations that encourage students to 
engage with Mathematics, Science and 
Technology (MST) in the most meaningful 
ways. It is key to the delivery of the GDE’s 
MST Strategy. It continues to support the 
Secondary School Improvement Programme 
(SSIP) by offering curriculum enrichment 
tuition classes to Grade 12 learners. 

SSIP reaches more than 240,000 learners. GDE and Sci-
Bono share a common mission and aspire to enhance 
SSIP outputs by upgrading the current SSIP to a digital 
platform dubbed as e-SSIP, in order to optimise the 
use of Information and Communications Technology 
(ICT) already in schools. This fits in with the Gauteng 
Provincial Government (GPG) ongoing Transformation, 
Modernisations and Re-Industrialisation (TMR) of 
Gauteng’s economy.

Our partnership with Sci-Bono continues to support 
the Schools of Specialization with a range of career 
services and life orientation workshops for all grades 
but notably counselling and therapeutic interventions 
for learners who need emotional support through its 
career centre, and training in coding. To this end, the 
centre has deployed a registered counsellor to provide 
psychological services and ICT trainers to provide coding. 
The career centre also supports the priority schools in 
Tshwane West and offers a series of scheduled and in-

depth life skills workshops focused on the cultivation of 
growth-orientated mind-sets and resilience.

Sci-Bono is a flagship science centre in the Sub-
Saharan region with excellent MST facilities in the form 
of laboratories, which learners visit in order to conduct 
experiments. It also runs a wide range of innovative 
informal science centre activities which are delivered to 
learners in a fun, exciting but educational manner.

The need to enhance learning outcomes is the driving 
force of my department’s undertaking, and in the year 
ahead, I look to the Sci-Bono Discovery Centre for 
further assistance in improving the level of performance 
in MST as a basis for skills development. 

The range and reach of our combined efforts as reflected 
in our reports over the years have been remarkable 
and I would like to express my gratitude to the Sci-
Bono team for their hard work and contributions to the 
implementation of the GDE’s MST Strategy.

I would further wish to thank the Board of Sci-Bono for 
their sterling job in ensuring that GDE’s MST Strategy is 
entirely and diligently implemented.  

Thank you

MR ANDREK PANYAZA LESUFI (MPL)
MEC FOR EDUCATION, GAUTENG

SCI-BONO DISCOVERY CENTRE ANNUAL REPORT | FOREWORD



04CHAIRPERSON’S REPORT

MR ABBEY WITBOOI 
CHAIRPERSON

On behalf of the Board of Directors of the 
Sci-Bono Discovery Centre, I herewith 
present the 2017/2018 Annual Report as 
being a true reflection of the work achieved 
by Sci-Bono Discovery Centre during the 
reporting period.

Sci-Bono has grown rapidly in the past two decades 
since its establishment and has progressively attained 
significant and notable achievements throughout. The 
2017/2018 financial year attest to our Strategic Roadmap 
2020-2030 journey, from good to excellence in terms of 
milestones achieved. We have demonstrated the capability 
to continuously re-evaluate the organisation’s service 
offering to the changing need of learners, educators and 
other critical stakeholders in the Mathematics, Science 
and Technology and ICT-induced education ecosystem.

As the Board of Directors, we are proud of evolving this 
model of a Science Centre (that does not exist elsewhere 
in Southern Africa) notably for its support to mainstream 
schooling in the Gauteng Province. Through cordial 
stakeholder engagement, we trust that this model may be 
replicated in other provinces.

For the 2017/2018 financial year, I wish to point out to the 
success of our extended teacher training programmes, 
covering the subject knowledge, pedagogy and 
assessment as quite remarkable. The value of SSIP has 
been acknowledged as one of the key contributors to 
the continued improvement of the Grade 12 pass rate in 
Gauteng. 
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As the Board of Directors, we are indeed proud of our diverse 
service offering which includes the exhibitory collection 
and large scale programmes that “engage learners” and 
uniquely characterise Sci-Bono as a flagship MST Teacher, 
Learner and ICT Development Centre of excellence.

We also reached out to extend our corporate donor 
community and we are making significant initiatives to 
the international donor base to our mutual beneficiation. 
Also, Sci-Bono has been earmarked by many professional 
institutions and associations as strategic partners in 
a quest for professional excellence in all aspects of 
science, engineering and technology in general as we 
taper gracefully into the Fourth Industrial Revolution and 
modernisation dispensation. 

From a corporate governance perspective, the Board of 
Directors worked cohesively, diligently and systematically 
over time and established several sub-committees to 
address key institutional challenges as the occasion 
demanded. 

It gives me great pleasure to report on the exceptional 
results of the organisation over the last financial year. 
The governance and its structures were fully functional 
thus effecting judicious and fiduciary responsibility of 
the highest level and retaining the unrivalled legacy of 
an unqualified audit in succession. I highly commend the 
governance and leadership in this regard, for their tireless 
commitment, support and discipline at all times. 

Recent developments in the Gauteng Province as well 
as the overall national fiscal and economic outlook for 
the 2017/2018 financial year and beyond, presented 
some daunting challenges for Sci-Bono in respect of 

business continuity and financial sustainability. These  
developments have greater propensity for unintended 
consequences and adverse impact on both the institutional 
and financial sustainability of Sci-Bono. 

I believe with such great minds working together, Sci-Bono 
will successfully navigate challenges of long-term financial 
sustainability. As we continue to build together, we need 
to ensure that Sci-Bono evolves to remain relevant and a 
significant portal and repository of science knowledge.

The leadership capacity at the executive level was also 
strengthened and reinvigorated with the filling of all  
senior positions. The Board’s approved strategic direction 
was embraced by the institution as processes were put 
in place to re-position the organisation. These processes 
were aimed at ensuring that there is compliance at all 
levels and that the organisation delivers on its mandate. 
One of the pillars of the strategy related to the development 
of our employees in terms of their intellectual capacity. 
This was critical and as a result a number of our 
employees were recognised for their research at the South 
African Agency for Science and Technology Advancement 
(SAASTA) conference. 

The Chief Executive Officer and his team have performed 
well in implementing the strategic objectives of the 
organisation. The organisation managed to enter into new 
partnerships both locally and internationally. We hosted 
the internationally acclaimed Lascaux Cave Exhibition 
which brought awareness to the wonders of rock and it 
attracted many people to the centre. Another notable 
accomplishment is the Premier’s award to four of our 
Clubhouse members for their contribution to the Fourth 
Industrial Revolution.

There were many challenges which confronted the 
organisation, however, the Board remained confident that 
the executive was well placed to respond and to avert any 
negative impact. Amongst all the achievements there  
were also some setbacks which need to be addressed  
going forward such as diversifying sources of revenue or 
income as well as the reviewing of our funding model for both 
operational costs and core programmes. Improvements in 
several spheres of the institution are needed in the new 
year, in order to enhance good governance.

We wish to extend our gratitude to the Premier of 
the Gauteng Province for his continued recognition of  
Sci-Bono’s contribution towards a better life for all. 

We are truly grateful to the MEC for Education, Mr. Panyeza 
Lesufi, for his exceptional leadership and unequalled 
success in education reforms as well as enabling Sci-Bono 
Discovery Centre to be one of the contributors to building a 
society with the capacity to compete in the global world of 
science and technology.

We look forward to the next dispensation with confidence 
and zeal. In our quest for excellence, we will continue to 
embrace change and re-invent Sci-Bono to be an apex of 
excellence for all. 

Thank you all for your contribution and valued support.

MR ABBEY WITBOOI 
BOARD CHAIRPERSON

SCI-BONO DISCOVERY CENTRE ANNUAL REPORT | CHAIRPERSON’S REPORT



06EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

DR MORE CHAKANE 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

OFFICER

On average, Sci-Bono performance in 
2017/18 has been relatively good compared 
to 2016/17. 

In this Financial Year, in core-business, I am proud to report 
that the number of participants in Sci-Bono activities 
jumped from 295,950 in 2016/17 to 600,084, an increase 
of 103%. This can be attributed to an increase in our 
community outreach initiatives and an improved accuracy 
in collecting our data. These numbers cut across the more 
than 30 major activities seating in Exhibitory, Science 
Centre, Careers Centre, Learner Support, Teacher Support 
and Youth Support. 

In Exhibitory, we added 4 new exhibits to our more than 
350 interactive science exhibitions on the floor, compared 
to only 2 in 2016/17. Amongst these is the 2-stroke car 
engine, arctic exhibition, and Mazda rotary engine. 119,214 
visitors interacted with these exhibitions in this Financial 
Year. It is our intention to continue on this path in 2018/19 
and introduce new exciting problem-solving interactive 
exhibitions. 

The Science Centre continues to be fundamental pillar and 
attraction in Sci-Bono. There was a 22% increase in the 
number of people that used our Physics, Chemistry and Life 
Sciences laboratories, totalling 25,826 compared to 20,224 
in 2016/17. 41,959 people took part in our science shows 
with different themes, cutting across many science areas. 
Even though we dropped the number of competitions held 
to 2 compared to 4 in 2016/17, we increased our community 
outreach initiatives to 14 compared to only 4 in 2016/17. 
It is our intention to increase the number of competitions 
especially the ones from the global world of science and 
technology as required by our vision.
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Our Science Career Centre has been a star performer in 
2017/18. Our performance increased in all but two of the 
programs. The number of people that underwent face-
to-face guidance increased from 451 in 2016/17 to 858 
in 2017/18, an increase of 89%. Similarly science career 
presentations attracted 32 596 people compared to only 
920 in 2016/17, an increase of 3,443%. There was slight 
increase in our flagship career centre program “Girl Child”. 
In 2017/18 1,865 girl learners participated in this program 
compared to 1,521 in 2016/17, which is an increase of 
23%. Parents advisory sessions attracted 319 parents 
this year compared to only 52 in 2016/17, an increase of 
513%. Counselling and therapy for high school learners 
and adults also increased by 79% from 108 to 193. We did 
not do well in our careers community outreach and out-
of-school youth-reach initiatives. Compared to 2016/17 
we attracted only 4,321 compared to 15,845 in the former 
which is a sharp decrease of 73%, and 682 compared to 1 
328 which is a decrease of 49% in the latter. 

Overall, in 2017/18, Sci-Bono supported 320 635 learners 
compared to 60,177 in 2016/17, an increase of 433%. 
Again, to a large extend, this big jump is attributed to 
our improved data capturing and reporting, of which we 
have been under-reporting in previous years. The bulk of 
the learners supported were in SSIP. In 2017/18 313,984  
learners participated in the SSIP program compared to  
55,686 in 2016/17. Even though this looks like an increase 
of 464%, it is largely due to the under-reporting in 2016/17. 
The other three programs under which learners were 
supported are Emasondosondo Outreach Program,  
Export Credit Insurance Corporation (ECIC) Learner 
Support Program, and Abaholi Learner Support Program. 
3,522 Learners were supported in Emasondosondo 
compared to 2,471 in 2016/17, an increase of 43%; 312 

in Abaholi compared to 120 in 2016/17 resulting in an 
increase of 160%; and 312 in ECIC. 

Sci-Bono also supports teachers. In 2017/18 19 354 
teachers were supported through various training 
programs compared to 36,413 supported in 2016/17, which 
is a decrease of 47%. This decrease was due to budget cut. 
Of the 19,354 teachers supported, 13 221 were Foundation 
Phase, 712 Intermediate Phase, 4,618 Senior Phase and 
803 FET Phase teachers. In 2016/17, we supported 21 133 
Foundation Phase, 3,300 Intermediate Phase, 8 852 Senior 
Phase, and 3 128 FET Phase teachers. This is a drop of 37% 
Foundation Phase, 78% Intermediate Phase, 48% Senior 
Phase, and 74%  FET Phase respectively.  

One of our flagship program in ICT is the support we 
provide to unemployed youth in partnership with DELL. 
In 2017/18 we trained 9,346 youth in employer-seeking 
courses like Network Security, Web Development, 
Graphic Design, Animation and Video Production. This 
is an increase of 8 706 (1 360%) compared to only 640 in  
2016/17. We also trained and graduated 1,440 teachers 
in End-User Computing in partnership with ETDP SETA, 
compared to 1,240 in 2016/17, which in an increase of 16%. 
In line with Fourth Industrial Revolution, we have also 
trained 5,550 youth in Coding. 

Non-core business continued to play a critical support 
role to the achievements in core-business. Even though 
the number of permanent employees decreased by 
12 (7%) from 179 to 167; and our AVE decreased by  
R18,531,046 from R21,787,277 in 2016/17 to R3,256,230 in 
2017/18; our retained surplus increased by 17% from R220 
million to R258 million, operating surplus increased to 
R16 million from deficit of R28 million, and we closed the 

year with a surplus of R35 million compared to a deficit 
of R3 million in 2016/17. This stability in the finances has 
contributed a lot towards achievement in 2017/18. 

I take this opportunity to thank the MEC for Education, Mr 
Andrek Panyaza Lesufi (MPL); The Head of Department of 
GDE Mr Edward Mosuwe; GDE Top Management, Extended 
Management and Broad Management Team for their 
continued support and cooperation with Sci-Bono. 

I also thank the Chairperson of Sci-Bono Board Mr Abbey 
Witbooi and Sci-Bono Directors for providing me and 
the management team with the necessary support and 
guidance. 

Thanks to my colleagues in the Senior Management Team 
and MANCO. Thanks to all Sci-Bono employees for the 
hard work displayed. 

And last but not least, thanks to our private and public 
partners for believing in the work of Sci-Bono and in 
its vision. Sci-Bono envisions a South Africa that has a 
scientifically literature society and competes in the global 
world of science and technology. 

I thank you.

DR MORE CHAKANE
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

SCI-BONO DISCOVERY CENTRE ANNUAL REPORT | EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
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Sci-Bono Discovery Centre is the national 
flagship science centre in South Africa, 
and the largest and most visited science 
centre in Southern Africa. Located in the 
historic, century-old Electric Workshop 
in the cultural precinct of Newtown, 
Johannesburg, Sci-Bono annually receives 
hundreds of thousands of visitors to its 
large collection of interactive science and 
technology exhibits and exhibitions.

Sci-Bono started in 2004 as a partnership between the 
GDE and various private sector partners.

It supports MST education in order to help build South 
Africa’s science, engineering and technology capacity.

Sci-Bono works with the Department of Science 
and Technology and the SAASTA to promote interest 
and awareness in the fields of science, technology, 
engineering and mathematics. It is also a core member 
of the Southern African Association of Science and 
Technology Centres (SAASTEC).

VISION
Sci-Bono Discovery Centre envisions a society with 
the capacity to compete in the global world of science 
and technology, and that is equipped with the skills, 
attitudes and values needed to improve the quality of 
life of all South Africans.

MISSION
Sci-Bono’s mission is to support and enhance the 
delivery of effective mathematics, science, technology 
and career education in Gauteng schools, and to 
improve awareness of, interest in and engagement with 
all aspects of science, engineering and technology in 
youth and the general public.

GOALS
Sci-Bono works towards achieving this mission by:

• Improving the teaching and learning of 
mathematics, science and technology in Gauteng

• Providing career education to learners and youth 
in Gauteng

• Providing skills development opportunities for 
young people

• Promoting and improving public awareness of 
and engagement with science, engineering and 
technology.

To achieve these goals, Sci-Bono implements a wide 
range of activities and offers exhibitions for learners, 
teachers and the general public at its centre in Newtown, 
and through an extensive outreach programme to 
schools and communities throughout Gauteng.

SCI-BONO DISCOVERY CENTRE | OVERVIEW
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OFFICER
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EXECUTIVE 
SUMMARY
The core business departments showed 
over 100% performance against the annual 
targets, with all but two core business units 
far exceeding their annual targets (see 
Figure 1). The Science Centre (SC), Career 
Centre (CC), School Support (SS), Teacher 
Development (TDU) and ICT Development 
& Training (ICT) departments far exceeded 
their annual targets with the TDU and 
ICT training departments exceeding their 
annual targets by 100%. 

The Science Centre, Career Centre and School Support 
departments exceeded their targets by an average of 
13%. 

The two departments that slightly underperformed 
on their annual overall targets were Exhibitry and 
Project Management Office (PMO) largely due to the  
dependency of their targets on other departments. 

In 2018/2019 we look to further improving our operations 
to attract more people to our service offerings by 
bringing in new programmes and exhibitions that 
align to our vision and  the United Nations Sustainable  
Development Goals (SDGs).

CORE BUSINESS | EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
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SCIENCE  
CENTRE
Sci-Bono is a leading Science education destination and 
a much-loved school excursion highlight for hundreds 
of thousands of South African learners who travel 
to or reside in Gauteng. It  is strategically located in  
Newtown, Johannesburg – in close proximity to a 
number of well-known tourist attractions such as the 
Mary Fitzgerald Square, Market Theatre, Afronova Art 
Gallery, Workers’ Museum and many more. 

Sci-Bono has attracted over 1,5 million visitors since 
its official opening in 2004. It has always welcomed 
learners from various schools, academic staff and the 
general public to be inspired and engaged with fun, 
hands-on learning, enquiry and wonder. 

The Centre showcases and brings to life the natural 
world of science through its three broad programmes:

• Science Awareness Programmes
• Science Education Programmes
• Science Communication Programmes

During this reporting period, the Science Centre 
conducted eight major activities which included 
interaction with the 300 exhibits collection, MST shows, 
laboratory science experiments, MST competitions, 
quizzes and celebrations of international days and 
special programmes. 

SCIENCE AWARENESS  
PROGRAMMES
Science awareness programmes are mass participation 
programmes which aim to create general awareness 
about broad scientific areas. The focus is on basic 
knowledge transfer to audiences who may have 
never been exposed to science before, and therefore 
entertainment is key. 

INTERACTION WITH  
EXHIBITS 
Sci-Bono boasts a collection of over 300 interactive 
exhibitions that interprets complex science to visitors in 
a simplified, fun and exciting manner. 

In 2017/2018, 119,214 people visited the Science Centre. 
In the first and last quarters, the Centre saw less  
visitors compared to the second and third quarters 
because of the academic calendar (see Figure 2). 

MST SCIENCE SHOWS
In 2017/2018, the Science Centre conducted the 
following science shows: pressure science, static 
electricity, square kilometre array project, and earth 
systems. 

A total of 45,631 people participated in these science 
shows. Most of the participation was in the second 
quarter and the participants were mainly learners (see 
Figure 3). 
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FIGURE 3: Number of people that participated in Science shows 
in 2017/2018
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FOCUS WEEKS
The annual focus weeks have become Sci-Bono’s 
premier programmes to enthuse and educate teachers 
and learners about the critical role of MST in our 
daily lives. These focus weeks include a combination 
of innovative exhibitions, presentations as well as 
interactive workshops. During the 2017/2018 year,  
Sci-Bono hosted 31,504 learners and educators for the 
following focus weeks:

•  Mathematics Week
•  National Water Week
•  Engineering Week
•  Health Science Week
•  World Biotechnology Tour
•  National Science Week
•  Sustainable Energy Week
•  Transport Week.
 

HOLIDAY PROGRAMMES 
Sci-Bono implemented a host of exciting activities 
during each of the school holidays in 2017/2018. The 
following holiday programmes were presented for 
children, youth, parents, pensioners and tourists: 

• Myth Busters Programme attempted to demystify 
myths about science, sound, electricity, optics and 
human evolution. 4,623 People took part in this 
holiday programme

• Space Adventures Programme presented activities 
ranging from telescope building, science of 
rockets, exploring robots in space, calculating 
your weight on other planets, and understanding 
how astronomers use the splitting of light to study 

distant objects in space. 2,564 People participated 
in this holiday programme

• Biotechnology Programme showcased the 
importance and contribution of biotechnology in 
agriculture, medicine, industry and our immediate 
environment. 5,153 People participated in this 
holiday programme

• Eco-Warriors Programme is an exploratory and 
educational look at how science can assist us to 
care for our environment. 1,735 Visitors  
participated in the programme. 

BIRTHDAY PARTIES 
Sci-Bono’s birthday party facility continues to be one of 
Gauteng’s most popular science themed birthday party 
venues. The programme is fully booked for months in 
advance. Sci-Bono hosted 6,449 visitors for birthday 
parties from March 2017 to February 2018. 

UNITED NATIONS DAYS
Sci-Bono participates in various international days each 
year, including World Water Day, World Environment 
Day, International Literacy Day, World Food Day, World 
Science Day and World Disability Day. A total of 1,627 
people participated in the international days programme 
during 2017/2018. 

SCIENCE EDUCATION  
PROGRAMMES 
The Sci-Bono science education programmes assist 
in enhancing the quality of teaching and learning of 
MST through programmes and activities that support 
relevant content delivery. 

CORE BUSINESS | SCIENCE CENTRE
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MST LABORATORIES 
Sci-Bono has three laboratories for Physics, Chemistry 
and Life Sciences. The three laboratories continue to play 
a critical role in helping school learners, especially from 
the previously disadvantaged communities, conduct 
their experiments for school-based assessments. 

The laboratories also assist teachers to pilot-test 
experiments and engage members of public who want 
to understand science better. 

In 2017/2018 a total of 25 826 learners used the 
Physics, Chemistry and Life Sciences laboratories  
(see Figure 4).

APPRENTICE DOCTOR
Introduced in 2010, the programme targets Grade 10 
to Grade 12 learners and aims to expose them to the 
real-life experience of the use of medical instruments, 
techniques and procedures. Sci-Bono hosted a Pre-
Medical Camp in April during which learners spent their 
time interacting with different specialists in the medical 
field and performing hands-on practical work. During 
2017/2018, 126 learners and 4 educators participated in 
the programme.

ELECTRONICS CLUB
A series of enjoyable, interactive and informal club 
sessions, which aim to improve Grade 10 and Grade 11 
learners’ technical electronics skills. The sessions took 
place on Thursday afternoons at 14:30 at the Sci-Bono 
Discovery Centre and involved learners assembling and 
testing various electronic circuits. In 2017/2018, 180 
participated in the programme. 

ROCKETRY COURSES
Four rocketry courses were hosted by Sci-Bono 
during the school holiday periods of 2017 with funding 
support from Denel Dynamics. The courses involved 
teaching the fundamentals of rocketry and it applied 
mathematics, science and technology to Grade 11 
students while designing, constructing and launching 
a rocket within their respective teams. A total of 69 
learners participated in the courses. Learners were 
selected from various schools in Gauteng and mentored 
by trainers from AeroSpace Research, who facilitated 
the courses. 

SCIENCE COMPETITIONS 
To inspire learners by involving them in challenging, 
fun and stimulating MST fields, Sci-Bono organises 
competitions and quizzes. 

During 2017/2018 Sci-Bono co-ordinated the following 
competitions and quizzes:

• Astronomy Quiz: The competition started as a  
Sci-Bono project in 2005 and gradually evolved 
into a national project. The 2017 quiz participation 
increased tremendously. The total number of 
schools that participated in 2017 was 401 with 1 
604 learners, compared to only 250 schools that 
participated in 2016. Dr Yusuf Dadoo Primary 
School was crowned the 2017 provincial and 
national Astronomy Quiz Champions at the final 
round which was hosted in Pretoria

• Mental Mathematics Challenge: Started in 2011, 
Mental Mathematics Challenge is an exciting 
competition for Grade 3 learners. The challenge 
is divided into four levels namely: school level, 
cluster level, district level and provincial level. A 
total of 2 730 learners from all of Gauteng’s 15 

FIGURE 4: Number of learners that used laboratories in 2017/2018
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education districts participated in the cluster level. 
The provincial level challenge took place on 18 
October 2017 with 60 learners participating. The 
awards day took place on Saturday 4 November 
2017

• MinQuiz: MinQuiz is an annual national science 
competition sponsored by Mintek. It encourages 
interest in careers in science, engineering and 
technology, especially in minerals and metallurgy. 
In 2016/2017 a total of 165 Grade 12 learners 
participated in the competition, mentored by 55 
educators

• FIRST LEGO League (FLL): This annual 
international robotics competition introduces 
learners to the world of robotics and teaches them 
valuable life skills. Guided by their educators, 
teams research real-world problems such as 
food safety, recycling and energy to develop new 
solutions. A total of 577 learners in  
15 teams from 15 schools participated in the FLL 
competition in 2017/2018. Two teams qualified to 
compete in the national tournament, which was 
hosted at the Science Centre.

SCIENCE COMMUNICATION 
PROGRAMMES
Public presentations on science-related topics, offer an 
opportunity for scientists and the public to engage in 
conversations around science. It empowers the public 
to have informed opinions on such topics.

SPEAK TO A SCIENTIST (S2AS) 
The Science Centre hosts a series of public talks on 
the last Thursday evening of each month. Scientists are 
invited to engage the public on current scientific affairs 
and news-making phenomena. A total of 3 119 people 
attended the S2aS evening talks in 2017/2018. 

Two of the main attractions that hosted talks at  
Sci-Bono Discovery Centre included a talk by a retired 
NASA Deputy Chief Technologist, Mr Jim Adams, who 
gave a talk on “The Life and Times of Cassini”. In his 
talk, Mr Adams explored the Cassini spacecraft and 
its probe Huygens, which was a collaboration between 
NASA and the European Space Agency. 

Sci-Bono also hosted Ms Lucy Hawking, daughter of 
the late world-famous physicist Prof Stephen Hawking, 
who presented a talk entitled: “Once Upon a Time in 
the Universe”. As journalist and author, she works with 
world-leading scientists to write adventure stories - 
explaining complex science in simple terms to young 
readers.

SPECIAL PROGRAMMES

WORLD BIOTECHNOLOGY TOUR 
In 2015, Sci-Bono applied to become part the World 
Biotechnology Tour through the Association of Science 
- Technology Centres (ASTC) and was selected as one  
of 12 science centres in the world – and the only in  
Africa – to be a tour stop of the World Biotechnology  
Tour (WBT 2015-17).

Sci-Bono also took up its position as part of the global 
community of science centres and museums during 
the Science Centre World Summit 2017 held in Tokyo, 
Japan. 

The most exciting part of the project was the Learner 
Ambassador Programme. High school students from 
around the world were selected to give presentations 
about dynamic biotechnology topics in their schools 
and communities to inspire others to get involved in 

CORE BUSINESS | SCIENCE CENTRE
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biotechnology. As a participating country, South Africa 
recruited learners from Johannesburg (Sci-Bono),  
Cape Town (Cape Town Science Centre) and Pretoria 
(Sci-Enza Discovery Centre). This gave the WBT project 
a broader footprint within the country.

The Learner Ambassador Programme ran for a year 
and the highlight was when one ambassador was 
selected to attend the Science Centre World Summit in 
Tokyo, Japan from 14 to 18 November 2017. Khomotso 
Thobejane (16) from Forte High School in Dobsonville, 
represented South Africa at this prestigious event.

COMMUNITY OUTREACH
As part of its vision to help society understand the 
relevance of science, Sci-Bono coordinates various 
community outreach activities throughout the year. Sci-
Bono presented a range of science shows, experiments 
and interactive exhibits to 14 public institutions and 
organisations during the past financial year.

This included the following: 

• Drieziek 4, Orange Farm: Sci-Bono collaborated 
with DOW Southern Africa to help build homes for 
families in the community. Adults and children 
were treated to exciting science shows and some 
interactive exhibits whilst the building project was 
taking place

• The Villa of Hope: Science shows and experiments 
were conducted to entertain and educate children

• Frances Vorwerg School: Science learning through 
interactive play was presented at this school for 
cerebral palsied and learning disabled children

• Khaya Centre Mount Olive: Sci-Bono conducted 
science shows and interactive exhibits which 
brought great joy to the children

• Frederic Place Home for the Aged: Sci-Bono 
conducted science shows and interactive exhibits 
for the senior citizens.

These initiatives reached more than 4 239 members of 
the general public  including disabled and disadvan-
taged learners, youth and adults. 

EXHIBITRY
The All for One exhibition, showcasing the common 
origin of humanity, is on loan from the Palaeontological 
Scientific Trust (PAST) and was scheduled to 
remain at Sci-Bono for one year only. However, it is 
running into its second year now and has extended  
Sci-Bono’ partnership with PAST beyond the initial term 
of agreement. 

The Our Arctic Future exhibition, displaying life in 
the Antarctic was donated to Sci-Bono by the Danish 
Embassy and is maintained by the exhibitry team.
 

EXHIBIT BUILDING  
WORKSHOP 
The Sci-Bono exhibitry department conducted a 
workshop at the annual South African Association of 
Science and Technology Centres (SAASTEC) conference 
in 2017. Students from science centres were taken 
through the process of basic exhibit building. Each  
piece of the exhibits was assessed and evaluated 
against set criteria. Fourteen out of the fifteen students 
who took part in the exhibit building workshop passed 
the test and were able to take their exhibit home to 
their own centre as part of their centre’s interactive 

collection. Each exhibit was branded with the Sci-Bono 
logo. 

Interactive exhibit building skills are extremely scarce 
in South Africa, hence the need for such workshops. 

MAZDA ROTARY ENGINE
The Mazda Rotary Engine is a showcase of the inner 
workings of a very unusual engine. Whereas the 
conventional internal combustion engine operates on 
the upward and downward movement of pistons, the 
router of the rotary engine makes a circular movement 
to power the engine. The engine was generously donated 
by BYM Fabrication (Kempton Park) and all machining 
was done in-house. The engine will be displayed in a 
custom-made perspex case to allow maximum visibility 
and visitor safety. It is possibly the only one of its kind 
in the country which demonstrates this level of detail. 

IN-HOUSE CARPENTRY 
TRAINING 
A short course entitled “Introduction to Carpentry” 
was run twice for five staff members with the aim of 
skills development. Each student made their own final 
product. 
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SCIENCE 
CAREER
CENTRE
The Science Career Centre is a full-service career 
information, education, guidance and counselling 
facility. It focuses primarily on science and technology 
careers in order to align to the vision of Sci-Bono, 
which shapes and influences the design of programme 
content and outputs. 

The Sci-Bono Science Career Centre is the only 
community-based career services facility in the country 
which offers professional psychological services as part 
of its programme offering. It is similar to careers and 
counselling units located at universities and is also 
benchmarked against such centres. It also supports 
educators in the delivery of the Life Orientation 
curriculum outputs. 

During the 2017/2018 reporting period, the Science 
Career Centre reached 45,271 beneficiaries.

The Science Career Centre offers two main  
programmes:

1. Career Information, Education and Advisory 
Services Programmes

2. Career Development Support and Counselling 
Services Programmes

SCIENCE CAREER  
INFORMATION, EDUCATION & 
ADVISORY SERVICES 
This programme entails the development and collection 
of career information to support walk-in clients and 
for use during face-to-face guidance sessions. This 
programme also delivers workshops and presentations 
to Grade 7 to Grade 12 learners and out-of-school 
youth. Special programmes such as Grade 7 Science 
Fairs, Future of Work Series and Learner Industry  
Tours are also presented by the Science Career Centre. 
The Centre hosts an annual programme for girls - 
supported by female professionals, researchers and 
academics from science and engineering disciplines. 
The group activities under this programme take 
place on-site and externally in various schools and 
communities. The Centre also participates in external 
career expos.

SCIENCE CAREER CENTRE WALK-IN 
CLIENTS
The Science Career Centre has a Resource Centre which 
houses a collection of career information resources. 
It is used by learners, out-of-school youth and the 
general public to search for employment, training, 
tertiary education and bursary opportunities. It is also 
used for study purposes by learners from local schools 
who are on the re-write programme to improve their  
Grade 12 results.

During the past financial year, 970 walk-in clients visited 
the Resource Centre (see Figure 5). 
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FACE-TO-FACE CAREER GUIDANCE 
SESSIONS
The Resource Centre is staffed by trained career 
education facilitators and career counsellors who 
mediate career information and provide face-to-face 
career guidance. A total of 858 people attended such 
sessions during 2017/2018 (see Figure 6). 

SCIENCE CAREER PRESENTATION SERIES
This is a series of presentations and workshops  
delivered to large groups. It provides career  
information and life skills training to learners in  
Grade 7 to Grade 12. The topics in the series are  
aligned to the CAPS curriculum and focuses on the 
importance of work, careers and subject choices,  
world of work and study, admission requirements, 
funding for study programmes as well as employment 
trends. The Grade 9 series is very popular and had the 
highest attendance, followed by Grade 10 and Grade 12. 

In this financial year, 32 596 Grade 7 to Grade 12  
learners participated in the series (see Figure 7). 

OUT-OF-SCHOOL WORKSHOPS
These interactive two-day workshops are intended 
to provide information regarding job search and 
entrepreneurship to out-of-school youth. The Science 
Career Centre team also facilitated youth dialogues 
in communities to raise awareness about contextual 
social and economic challenges and ways in which 
the youth could become catalysts of change in their 
environments. A total of 682 young people, notably from 
Munsieville and Ratanda as well as other townships  
in Soweto participated in these programmes in 
2017/2018 (see Figure 8).

EXPOS & COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT
The Science Career Centre routinely participates in 
external career expos hosted by churches, NGO’s and 
schools. The audiences include learners in different 
grades, out-of-school youth and parents. Apart from 
stall exhibitions, the Centre also delivers parallel 
career-related presentations to school groups and 
provide guidance to parents on how to support their 
children regarding career choices - especially in 
science. The team also presents to out-of-school 
youth on skills-based training opportunities and 
referrals to other service centres which provide 
life skills and employment possibilities. Altogether  
4,321 beneficiaries participated in these initiatives in 
2017/18 (see Figure 9). 
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SPECIAL PROGRAMMES

SPECIAL PROGRAMMES
The Science Career Centre introduced three new 
programmes in order to align its offerings to the vision 
of Sci-Bono. 

GRADE 7 SCIENCE FAIR 
The Grade 7 Science Fair coincided with the annual 
National Career Dress-up Day. The activities included 
STEM careers presentations, audio-visual simulations 
of real work science environments and careers involved 
in the whole value chain. Science shows and a showcase 
by learners dressed in science wear – lab coats and 
telescopes, doctors and stethoscopes, nurses – formed 
part of the fair.

LEARNER INDUSTRY TOUR INITIATIVE 
As part of this new initiative, learners visited sites 
in the automotive, aviation, steel and manufacturing 
industries in order to expose them to the inner workings 

of these industries. The processes and technologies 
related to these industries were explored and the vast 
career opportunities highlighted. 

Learners also had opportunities to interact with role 
models who work in those environments and who 
shared their life stories and work experiences. 

The majority of the learners were selected from 
technical high schools and the intention was to introduce 
them to and encourage them to embrace the trades and 
vocations as careers of choice. The programme was 
also intended to contribute to the uptake of artisans and 
tradesmen skills which the economy so desperately 
needs.

THE FUTURE OF WORK 
This programme was introduced to create awareness 
of and advocate for the future of work in the era of 
Industry 4.0. It was intended to start a conversation 

within the school community on what the workplace 
would look like in the next two to three decades as a 
result of the convergence of biotechnology, engineering 
and ICT technologies. It also highlighted the impact 
that these technologies might have on work patterns as 
well as exciting opportunities for the emergence of new 
careers. It also emphasized the importance of Science 
and Mathematics as gateway subjects to successful 
careers of the future. 

A total number of 2,902 learners participated in this 
programme (see Figure 10).

GIRL LEARNER PROGRAMME
The Science Career Centre hosted its annual  
programme for girls which was supported by 
accomplished women in the fields of science and 
engineering. Some of the female professionals involved 
in the programme are founders of initiatives for the 

FIGURE 9: Number of people participating in Outreach activities

0 1000 2000 3000 4000 5000

Quarter 2

Quarter 3

Quarter 1

Quarter 4

Totals

1 367

1 489

1 474

1 480

4 321

FIGURE 10: Number of learners who participated in Special programmes

0 500 1000 1500 2000 2500 3000

Future of Work

Industry Tours

Grade 7 
Science Fair

Totals

763

1 608

531

2 902



21

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 Total

154 159

6

319

promotion and awareness of science and engineering 
for girls, notably WomHub, formerly known as 
WomEng. The focus of these initiatives is to nurture 
and grow talent pipelines in the fields of science and  
engineering. The programme also attracted academics 
from science research councils. During this financial 
year, 1,865 girls attended this special programme  
(see Figure 11).

CAREER DEVELOPMENT  
SUPPORT & COUNSELLING 
SERVICES PROGRAMME
This programme offers a full spectrum of career 
development and psychological support services. 
It is staffed by Health Professions Council of South 
Africa (HPCSA) registered professional psychologists, 
counsellors, psychometrists including educational 
psychology and psychometrics interns. By its nature, 
 

the activities in this programme generally cater for 
individuals or small groups of clients. 

This programme also hosts an annual internship 
programme in Psychometrics and Educational 
Psychology for Honours and Masters degree students 
respectively. Interns go through rigorous training and 
supervision in order to prepare them for the national 
board exams endorsed by the Board of Psychology 
for professional registration with the HPCSA. Once 
registered, they earn independent practice credentials 
and can create jobs for themselves and for other interns 
looking for placement sites which offer training and 
supervision. 

The internship programme hosted interns from 
provinces outside of Gauteng. It also attracted interns 
from Nigeria, Zambia, Swaziland and Ghana who have 
graduated from South African universities.

ADVOCACY SESSIONS
The Science Career Centre runs a series of psycho-
educational assessments and counselling sessions 
in schools in order to inform and educate teachers, 
learners and, where possible, parents and school 
governing bodies to enable them to determine if and 
how learners should be referred for career assessments 
and counselling. 

The Centre also continues to support initiatives, 
especially in economically depressed communities, 
through its outreach programme. The support includes 
delivering parenting skills workshops to low income 
groups as well as capacity building workshops in basic 
counselling skills, crisis management, trauma and 
debriefing for volunteers and other workers involved 
in community service centres. A total of 319 individuals 
participated in these sessions (see Figure 12). 
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FIGURE 11: Number of girls participating in the Girl learner programme
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... EQUIPPED with the 
SKILLS, ATTITUDES & VALUES 

needed to IMPROVE the quality of 
life of all South Africans.

SUBJECT CHOICE & CAREER 
ASSESSMENTS
These assessments are offered to Grade 9 and Grade 
12 learners for subject choices and career decision-
making respectively. The tests are standardised and 
consist of aptitude, personality, interests, abilities 
and work values measures. The results of the tests 
are matched against learner aspirations and are used 
to facilitate decision-making for subject and career 
choices. 

A total of 536 career assessments were conducted 
during this period (see Figure 13). The numbers do not 
include follow-up feedback sessions with clients and 
may be double the figure mentioned.

PSYCHO-EDUCATIONAL ASSESSMENT 
INTERVENTIONS 
Psycho-educational assessment interventions were 
offered on referral from the GDE and from parents whose 
children display learning and behavioural disorders. 
This category of assessments do not lend themselves 
to group work and can only be performed on one 
individual at a time, requiring a series of consultations 
with teachers and parents of clients before reports can 
be compiled and feedback given to parents. 

These are a true epitome of the principle of inclusive 
education because learners who were assessed in this 
financial year were eventually placed appropriately in 
schools according to their special and unique learning 
abilities. During this financial year, 29 assessments 
were carried out.

INDIVIDUAL COUNSELLING & THERAPY
The Science Career Centre places counsellors and 
Educational Psychology interns to do sessional 
counselling and therapy work once a week at the Curtis 
Nkondo School of Specialisation as well as in other 
special schools for learners with conduct disorders. 
It also provides counselling and therapy services to  
Sci-Bono staff and the public.

In this financial year, 193 clients benefitted from these 
services (see Figure 14).
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LEARNER 
SUPPORT 
UNIT
The Sci-Bono Learner Support Unit manages all the 
learner support programmes that are developed 
and implemented to enhance learner performance 
in priority secondary schools in Gauteng. The main 
focus is on improving performance in physical science, 
mathematics and other gateway subjects. 

SECONDARY SCHOOL 
IMPROVEMENT  
PROGRAMME (SSIP) -  
LEARNER SUPPORT  
PROGRAMME
The SSIP programme is based on a centralised and 
standardised approach to how additional tuition is 
managed and delivered. It is an approach that seeks 
to establish what best practice exists in and around 
Gauteng and to ensure that this is replicated consistently 
across all the schools that are part of the programme. 
It uses a transversal management approach that relies 
on all the stakeholders for input and depends on all 
stakeholders to achieve success. 

This programme runs parallel to the normal school 
programme. Content that is taught during the week, 
according to the agreed-upon GDE Work Schedule, is 
consolidated during what is being considered as ‘the 

sixth school day’. The programme focuses on tackling 
examination questions and on how to achieve maximum 
results in key areas of the curriculum. There is also a 
strong focus on homework with the aim of supporting 
the curriculum that is being dealt with on a weekly  
basis in the classroom. 

In total, 303,958 Grade 10 to Grade 12 learners from 
under-performing schools across Gauteng were 
supported through tutoring in all ten gateway subjects. 
The aim is to enhance their performance and the 
number of learners that are reached is accumulative. 
See Figure 15 for the breakdown per quarter.

EMASONDOSONDO   
OUTREACH PROGRAMME
Emasondosondo is the name given to the outreach 
programme, as derived from the Zulu word, ‘amasondo’ 
- meaning ‘for wheels’. This learner support programme 
is run by a team of specially trained mathematics and 
physical science teachers. The team reaches out to 
priority secondary schools throughout the province 
and provides tutoring which is blended with ICT and  
practical science activities for Grade 10, 11 and 12 
learners as well as Grade 5, 6 and 7 learners who do 
mathematics and science. 

Teachers who teach these subjects also benefit from the 
team’s intervention as some of the topics dealt with by 
the team are those found problematic by the teachers 
at the various beneficiary schools. It is expected of the 
teachers to learn how to handle the sessions from the 
team’s presentations and thereafter be able to deliver 
them with confidence. The are 12 expert teachers from 
Sci-Bono who co-teach with teachers from selected 
schools and 3,522 learners were supported through  
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this programme in the 2017/2018 financial year. 
Figure 16 illustrates the learner attendance per quarter.

ABAHOLI LEARNER SUPPORT 
PROGRAMME
Sci-Bono provided supplementary tuition in 
Mathematics, Physical Science, English, Computer 
Literacy and Personal Development to 312 high-
potential Grade 10 and Grade 11 learners throughout 
the year. The Grade 10 cohort was identified through a 
selection process, which included psychometric testing 
and testing on content. During the 2017/2018 financial 
year, the attendance was 308 learners as per Figure 17.

EXPORT CREDIT  
INSURANCE CORPORATION 
(ECIC) LEARNER SUPPORT 
PROGRAMME
Sci-Bono also provided supplementary tuition in Mathe-
matics, Accounting, Life Sciences and Physical Science 
to 2,817 learners in the Tshwane West and Tshwane 
South Districts. ECIC funded the programme. Figure 18 
illustrates learner attendance per quarter.
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TEACHER 
TRAINING &  
DEVELOMENT
The Sci-Bono Discovery Centre provides teacher  
training in MST and other Further Education and 
Training (FET) technical subjects for the GDE Teacher 
Development Directorate. This training is implemented 
in cooperation with the Mathew Goniwe School of 
Governance and Leadership, the province’s teacher 
training institute. The MST Teacher Development sub-
directorate focuses on building teachers’ competency 
in curriculum content, methodology and assessment. 
It also seeks to develop teachers’ proficiency in 
Information Communication and Technology (ICT) and 
Practical Assessment Task (PAT) skills through a DBE 
conditional grant and the ETDP-SETA grant.

The workshops that were conducted during this financial 
year were based on the MST content to be covered each 
term. In the senior phase mathematics, Sci-Bono in 
collaboration with the GDE, introduced the Grade 8 and 
Grade 9 mathematics strategy that aims at improving 
the average learner’s scores to above 60% relatively 
to both internal and external assessments. This is 
done by assisting the teachers to master mathematics 
content as instructed by the Annual Teaching Plan 
(ATP). This strategy aims to guide teachers and head 
of departments to adhere to notional teaching times, 
assessments, diagnosing and intervening and/or 
remediating. The scripted lesson plans were developed 
through this strategy and were distributed to all SSIP 
schools in Gauteng province.

Assessments are always administered before and 
after workshops to identify the efficacy of the training. 
In some instances the practical assessment tasks 
(PAT) were considered as part of this assessment. The 
table below summarises Sci-Bono’s teacher training 
performance during the reporting period.

TEACHER TRAINING
Sci-Bono trained 19,354 teachers in the Foundation, 
Intermediate, Senior and Further Education and 
Training Phases in this financial year. Most of the 
training is SACE endorsed. (See Figure 19).

In the Foundation Phase, teachers were trained on 
different topics of Mathematics including “Calculation 
Strategies for Error Analysis” and recorded an average 
improvement of 17,8% when pre-test and post-test 
results were compared. 

In the Intermediate Phase teachers were also trained 
in Mathematics Properties of 2D and 3D figures and 
recorded an average improvement of 8,01%.

For the Senior Phase, teachers were trained in 
Mathematics where there was an improvement of 
8,87% on average.

In the Further Education and Training Phase teachers 
were trained in Mathematics, Mechanical, Civil and 
Electrical Technology, Mathematical Literacy, Life 
Sciences and Physical Science.
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FIGURE 20

DEVELOPMENT OF  
LESSON PLANS
Sci-Bono developed 1,312 lesson plans in 
2017/2018. Figure 20 illustrates the breakdown 
of lesson plans per grade.
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WE ENVISION a society with the CAPACITY TO COMPETE
in the GLOBAL WORLD of SCIENE & TECHNOLOGY and that is 

EQUIPPED with the SKILLS, ATTITUDES & VALUES 
needed to IMPROVE the quality of life of all South Africans.
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ICT TRAINING  
& DEVELOPMENT
In 2017/2018, the Sci-Bono ICT Training and Development 
Unit supported 9 346 people through a range of training 
programmes and learning opportunities. This included 
learners, youth, teachers, Sci-Bono staff and the 
general public.

YOUTH DEVELOPMENT  
PROGRAMME
The Sci-Bono IT Academy offers relevant accredited 
training that is responsive to current market dynamics 
of digital transformation, technology disruption and 
the IT evolution. This training aims to empower 
unemployed youth for success in the digital economy. 
The training includes Cisco IT Essentials, Introduction 
to Cybersecurity, Linux Essentials, Networking 
Essentials, CCNA; Routing & Switching, CCNA Security, 
Internet of Things, Programming in C, C++, Python, Web 
Development, End User Computing, MS Project and 
Microsoft Office and MS Visio. 

Sci-Bono, in partnership with the US Consulate, 
concluded the Rosa Parks Library (RPL) community 
empowerment project which included 14 ICT and Career 
Education Workshops in Jabavu, Soweto. A total of 220 
township youth were exposed to a range of programmes, 
including technical basics, web development, graphic 
design, 3D designs and animation, video production and 
career education. 

LEARNER PROGRAMMES
The Sci-Bono Clubhouse offers the following training 
programmes to learners in a daily after-school 
program for learners aged 9 to 18 years: coding, 
robotics, advanced networking, network security, 
web development, graphic design, 3D designs, 2D 
and 3D modelling, animation, video production, basic 
computing, virtual art, music design and production. 
The training was extended to 1 061 learners at the six  
Dell Solar Powered Labs located at Mapetla High 
School, Emndeni High School, Rust-ter-Vaal Primary, 
and two at Waverly Girls High School. This training 
aims to ensure that learners are prepared for the 
digital transformation to ensure full participation in the  
fourth industrial revolution.

The Coding and Robotics programme was expanded 
when it was introduced into eight Schools of 
Specialization and at three Solar Powered Classrooms. 
The training culminated in participation in the 
national First Lego League Robotics Competition. The  
Clubhouse members participated in the First Tech 
Challenge (FTC) a more advanced competition that 
includes real-life engineering problems. The FTC 
is designed for students in Grade 7 to Grade 12 to 
compete head to head, using a sports model. Teams are 
responsible for designing, building, and programming 
their robots in a 10-week period to compete in an 
alliance format against other teams. The robot kit is 
reusable from year-to-year and is programmed using 
Java or the MIT App Inventor.

Sci-Bono trained 5,550 learners to code using the 
programme Scratch during the Africa Code Week 
(ACW) in October 2017. The ACW attempts to demystify 
coding and to create awareness of coding resources 

and opportunities for self-exploration and further 
development.

ICT TRAINING FOR TEACHERS 
Sci-Bono, in partnership with the ETDP SETA, provided 
training and support to 1,440 teachers (640 from 
ordinary public schools and 600 from schools of 
specialisation) with the Full MICT-accredited End-user 
Computing Qualification.

The ETDP SETA sponsored the training of 200 
Computer Applications Technology teachers on the 
official Microsoft Specialist Curriculum, Teaching with 
Technology, One Note and Office 363. 

SOFTWARE DEVELOPMENT
The Sci-Bono development team developed software 
applications for external and internal clients. These 
developments include online applications for GDE  
events and an online registration application for  
Inclusion Focus Week allowing attendees to pre- 
register for the event. The team developed and 
maintains applications for Sci-Bono internal use 
ranging from development of the Intranet, a fleet 
management system and a venue booking management 
system. Current development projects include an 
online registration system for MST teacher training. 
This system enables pre-registration of teachers that 
will assist with logistical arrangements for training and 
tracking of teacher training attendance.
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PROJECT  
MANAGEMENT 
OFFICE 
The Sci-Bono Discovery Centre established the Project 
Management Office (PMO) in 2014/2015 to support 
the GDE ICT e-Learning Project driven by the Chief 
Director: School Support. Over the years, the PMO 
played a central role in the coordination and planning of 
the proof of concepts that culminated in the adoption of 
the architectural outlook of the classroom of the future. 

During the year under review, the PMO continued 
to provide the following administrative and project 
management support to the e-Learning Project:

• Collect and manage data
• Liaise and coordinate with the various ICT 

Workstream players and provide them with 
support

• Coordinate Workstream meetings and monitor the 
implementation of the Decision Tracking Grid

• Coordinate and develop the ICT progress reports 
on behalf of the School Support Chief Directorate

• Coordinate and manage HOD and MEC ICT-related 
referrals, and provide reports and feedback to 
stakeholders

• Assist in the development of the reports of the 
School Support Chief Directorate for Broad 
Management Team (BMT), Extended Management 
Team (EMT)

• Monitor and inspect infrastructure refurbishments 
for the ICT Project Rollout.

The PMO also provided the institutional project 
management support to various sections like the SSIP, 
TDU and was responsible for the management of the 
GDE MST projects. The focus of the office during the 
financial year was to improve the quality planning, 
assurance and control of the GDE MST project to 
ascertain the realization of the objectives of the MST 
Conditional Grant. To ensure delivery of quality of the 
MST project, the PMO strengthen its coordination, 
facilitation and inspection of all procured items, which 
include the inspections of the production and logistical 
processes of the appointed suppliers. 

The PMO managed the delivery of the following MST 
projects rolled over from 2016/2017:

• Supply and delivery of micro servers, laptops and 
software

• Delivery and installation of visualizers and data 
projectors

• Supply and delivery of laptops to selected schools 

The PMO managed the delivery of the following 
2017/2018 MST projects:

• Supply and delivery of 7 210 Scientific Calculators 
in 103 FET schools

• Supply and delivery of Grade 8 Mathematics Kits in 
103 FET Schools

• Supply and delivery of Grade 11 Physical Science 
Kits in 103 FET Schools

• Supply and delivery of CAT/LABS in 8 FET Schools
• Supply and delivery of Grade 8 and Grade 9 

Natural Sciences Kits in 103 FET Schools
• Supply and delivery of Grade 11 Life Sciences Kits 

in 103 FET Schools
• Supply and delivery of Micro Servers, Laptops, and 

Software in 62 GET Schools
• Supply and delivery of Grade 8 and Grade 9 

Technology Kits in 103 FET Schools and 15 
Districts.
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SUPPORT TO THE CORE FUNCTION
The core function of the organisation is supported 
internally by the following support functions which are 
under the directorate of the Chief Financial Officer:

• Finance
 – Financial management
 – Risk management
 – Payroll
 – Procurement

• Corporate Services 
 – Human resources management
 – Facilities management
 – Marketing and communication

The organisation’s activities are carried out within 
the core business. However, while the planning and 
implementation of the organisation’s activities transpire 
through the core business function, the very same 
implementation is up-kept by support function units.

This enables the organisation to achieve its vision and 
plans. The Finance unit ensures that the yearly plans are 
adequately supported by available resources. Securing 
funds is thus a critical function of the organisation as 
by nature and formation, it is dependent on donor and 
project management funding.

The other units such as Human Resources, Procurement 
and Facilities are the back-bone of the Finance unit. 
The structure was revised subsequent to financial year 

end to enable better placement of resources within the 
organisation to enable improved and efficient utilisation 
of resources.

Historically and thus far, the organisation has mainly 
received funds from once source, the GDE. This is 
through the funding of the operations with the Science 
Centre (the programmes are outlined under the 
COO’s report) and implementation of projects such as 
SSIP, Re-organisation of Schools (ROS) and the MST 
conditional grant.

In the current financial year, the GDE has contributed 
81% of the total revenue generated. This illustrates a 
reduction with regards to the reliance placed on the  
main funder as the contribution has decreased in 
comparison to the prior financial year. The contribution 
in the prior year was 89% bearing in mind that this 
comparison does not take into account investment 
income. The organisation will continue to strive sourcing 
funds from other funders in order to expand on its vision 
of building a society that competes in the global world 
of science and technology.

The concerted efforts of the Human Resources 
department lead to the filling of critical vacancies 
including those at Executive level. This in turn yielded 
positive results within various areas of the organisation 
such as:

• improved risk management practices within the 
organisation

• efficient and transparent procurement 
management practices

• improved financial management and reporting, 
and

• reduction of recurring audit findings from both 
internal and external auditors.

The overall segregation of duties between the units 
has improved resulting in an improved internal control 
environment.

Further details regarding the activities of the support 
function units are provided on the pages to follow.

NON-CORE BUSINESS | SUPPORT TO THE CORE FUNCTION
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FINANCE &  
ADMINISTRATION
The finance unit is responsible for the budgeting, 
procurement planning and management, financial 
management, disbursement of the funds, risk 
management and the overall monitoring of the internal 
control environment within the organisation. 

The financial year 2018 is year where action plans were 
implemented resulting in some improvements in the 
internal control environment of the organisation. Some 
of the achievements were attained post financial year 
end date however still had impact on thee year under 
review and pave a way for better 2019 financial year.

In terms of revenue, the organisation did not perform 
as it did in the prior financial year. However, since 
the revenue of the organisation is generated through 
implementation of projects, one of the significant 
projects which has since come to an end, being the ITC 
roll-out in the schools, resulted in a sharp decrease in 
revenue. The decrease is 37% compared to the prior 
year.

Whilst revenue decrease, the implementation of 
stringent cost containment measures saw the operating 
surplus yield to R16,180 million in contrast to R28,917 
million deficit of the prior year. This was achieved 
through reduction of expenditure by 43%.

The decrease  in revenue also lead to a decrease in  
overall expenditure, hence the operating surplus. 
Finance costs were significantly reduced due to 

improved turn-around time in the payment of our service 
providers. The investment income also decreased due 
to timeous implementation of the projects leading 
to less funds held in the bank accounts. This is 
supported by note 9 in the notes to the annual financial 
statements, current liabilities, illustrating that monies 
held on behalf of donors has reduced significantly from 
R105,321 million in the prior year to R4,5 million as at 
the end of the financial year.

This is indicative that the financial resources of the 
organisation were adequately managed in the current 
year. Figure 21 depicts the relation between the total 
revenue and expenditure leading to the surplus reflected 
per the statement of Financial performance.

RISKS MANAGEMENT 
The risk assessment within the organisation still 
require some improvement to reach a maturity level. 
Risk monitoring processes are in place however the 
organisation is still striving to reach a point where the 
triggers in all aspects of the organisation’s operations 
are maturely effective and proactive.

FIGURE 21: 2017/18 SURPLUS
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PAYROLL & PROCUREMENT 
MANAGEMENT
Due to past challenges in the segregation of duties 
between payroll and the Human Resources Department, 
the payroll function was migrated into the finance unit. 
This has yielded results.

The procurement unit is still the pillar of the organisation 
in ensuring efficient, economic and effective cost 
spending within the organisation leading to timeous 
and efficient delivery of the projects implemented. 
The stringent cost containment measures were 
implemented through this unit.

CORPORATE SERVICES 
The activities of each of these non-core business 
functions with the Corporate services units are 
presented below. 

HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT
There were more females than males in Sci-Bono 
during this period. However there is still a need to 
recruit disabled people (see Figure 22).

Human Resources Department manages Sci-Bono’s 
employee life cycle, training and development, statutory 
and compliance to legislation, labour relations, 
recruitment and selection, employment equity plans, 
risk management, HR information system, policy 
management, performance management, employee 
wellness and employee relations management. 

The second focus area that entails a careful  
consideration is developing plans, which are 
fundamental to organisation to achieve its goals. This 

includes, workforce-planning, succession planning 
organisational development and talent management, 
pay levels designed to recruit, retain and motivate people 
and implementation of the grading system, which is  
seen as fair and giving proper reward for contributions. 
The grading system will also help to design the 
reward and recognition strategy, career development 
frameworks, which looks at development within the 
organisation at equipping employees with employability 
so that they can cope with increasingly frequent changes 
in the employer and employment patterns. 

NEW APPOINTMENTS & DEMOGRAPHICS
During the financial year, the permanent staff 
compliment decreased from 179 to 167 and the staff 
turnover went up to 7%. The company has reviewed its 
strategy in order to reposition itself in order to be more 
effective and efficient. This has resulted in Sci-Bono re-
packaging of its service offerings and a re-alignment 
of the organisational structure. A new organogram 
was approved post financial year end. The roll out of 
the new structure continued in the New Year. Three 
senior positions were filled, i.e. CEO, CFO and Company 
Secretary. 
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FIGURE 22: STAFF DEMOGRAPHICS
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Sci-Bono Discovery Centre envisions a society with the capacity to compete  
in the global world of sciene & technology and that is equipped with the skills,  

attitudes & values needed to improve the quality of life of all South Africans.
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HR INTERNAL COMMITTEES
We currently have the Training and Employment Equity 
Committee and Employee Management Committee. 
The Training Committee deals with the development 
of staff within their occupational level and makes 
sure that the criteria for training approval is fair and 
does not disadvantage any employees. The training 
committee aims to ensure that elementary staff should 
obtain qualifications that will help them grow as part of 
succession planning and talent management.

The Employee Management Committee is more of 
an assistance programme for employees in terms of 
their benefits, e.g provident fund and medical aid. This 
committee makes sure that the employees are well 
taken care off. One of the major benefits is the provident 
fund which the employer contributes so much money for 
an extra benefits like funeral cover, death/life insurance 
and disability cover.

SKILLS DEVELOPMENT
Given Sci-Bono’s unique role in promoting engagement 
with science and technology and in supporting 
education, it is often difficult to recruit staff with prior 
experience and expertise in the sciences. Sci-Bono’s 
strategy to address this is to invest in-training so that we 
can develop the capacity we need internally, to ensure 
we remain South Africa’s flagship science centre. The 
2017/18 organisation budget had set aside two budget 
line items for the development of staff as follows:

• Skills development training budget: R700,000
• Employee Assistance Programme: R1,000,000
• Annual Training Report Grants (Mandatory):  

R53,165 (received from the ETDP SETA)

We have spent R 434,566 in training of staff for this 
period. Our notable staff accomplishments include a 
Doctorate (PHD) and Master’s Degree.

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS
Sci-Bono continue to play a major role in the 
implementation of teacher and learner development 
programmes and this has led to management of these 
contracts which are more than 4000. This is mainly tutors 
who are involved in the GDE’s SSIP and development of 
the respective curriculum.

FACILITIES MANAGEMENT
The unit is responsible for the following functions:

• Property management
• Safety
• Housekeeping services
• Fleet management
• Information technology. 

Sci-Bono Discovery Centre has an obligation to comply 
with the Occupational Health and Safety Act 85 of 1993 
(as amended) this emanates from the organisations 
responsibility of health and safety towards its employees. 

During the year, the unit has managed to adhere to 
safety requirements leading to minimal or no significant 
accidents within the organisation. The primary purpose 
of Safety and Security is to provide safety towards 
employees within the company and strive to ensure 
employees are protected against any risks pertaining to 
safety and security in the workplace. 

• Formulating safety and health policy that address 
all safety concerns and objectives

• Continuously conducting security threats that 
affect the organization

• Strive to eliminate safety hazards and continuously 
conduct quarterly safety risk assessments in order 
to address unforeseen risks .

The organisation, as an ITC training provider administers 
its IT function internally. Collaboration exists between 
the ICT training units and the ICT administration and 
governance units to ensure that the organisation 
infrastructure and resources are up to date with current 
development
 
There were no major projects carried out during the 
year except for routine repairs and maintenance. 
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MARKETING
Sci-Bono Discovery Centre was awarded, for the 
4th consecutive year, the TripAdvisor Certificate of 
Excellence for consistently great reviews. The rating out 
of 5 for TripAdvisor is 4.5, for Facebook is 4.6, and for 
Google Reviews is 4.4.

We have a visible presence in the media as per the 
Advertising Value Equivalent (AVE). The value of the 
publicity-received remains high and coverage for the 
period amounted to R3,256,230.

The number of followers on social media increased 
across all the social media platforms between 500 and 
1000 followers. Facebook increased by 23%, Twitter by 
10,5%, and Website by 415%. (See Figure 23).

EXHIBITIONS & EXPOS
In aligning to our vision, Sci-Bono continues to 
participate in Expos and Exhibitions as an effective 
means to highlight, create awareness and promote the 
centre programmes and activities to the public and a 
variety of audiences.

FIGURE 23: SOCIAL MEDIA FOLLOWERS

NON-CORE BUSINESS | MARKETING, EVENTS & COMMUNICATIONS
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EVENTS 
Sci-Bono Discovery Centre boasts a large Conference 
and Events Centre which comprises of a 272 seater fully 
equipped Auditorium, Executive Boardrooms, Training 
Rooms, Halls and Birthday Venues. We cater for all types 
of events with a maximum seating of 400 pax cinema 
style. We provide a full-scale event management role, 
including event logistics, setup, AV and décor.

Sci-Bono hosted over 100 external events, including 
GDE, Office of the Premier and E-Government events/
meeting/conferences in 2017/18. Some of the highlights 
were:

• The Green Youth Network Conference on career 
and entrepreneurial opportunities within the green 
economy

• Ahmed Kathrada Foundation Public Lecture on 
Anti-Racism

• University of Johannesburg Public Lecture on 
Woman Race and Revolution

• Career Build Comedy Night
• Royal Tickets – Raising Awareness on Human 

Trafficking.

Our Education Team designed new Teambuilding 
Activities during this year so our clients have more 
teambuilding options available to them.

COMMUNICATIONS 
In ensuring that Sci-Bono maintains a strong profile 
in the education domain, we continue to distribute 
newsletters to all employees and our stakeholders as 
well as four schools term newsletters. In this financial 
year, nine monthly internal newsletters were written 
and distributed.
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CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
All members of the Board are Non-Executive Directors 
(NED’s) in terms of the Sci-Bono Memorandum of 
Incorporation. It is important to note that the Chief 
Executive Officer (CEO) is an ex officio member of 
the Board of Directors. As at 28 February 2017, the  
Sci-Bono Board of Directors was composed of the 
following members:

• Mr Abbey Witbooi (Chairperson)
• Rev. Frank Chikane (Deputy Chairman)
• Prof Bongani Bantwini
• Ms Gail Campbell
• Mr Sathie Gounden
• Ms Nandipha Madiba
• Mr Zeth Malele
• Ms Patricia Maloka
• Adv Lentswe Mokgatle
• Mr Andries Mthethwa (formerly Tshabalala) 
• Dr Vathiswa Papu-Zamxaka
• Prof Khulekani Sitole

Ex Officio Member 
Ms Fikile Mapela (28 February 2017 – 31 March 2017)
Dr More Chakane (1 April 2017 – present)

The Board met five times during the financial year (see 
Table 1 for members’ attendance).

DIRECTORS MEETING DATES SPECIAL MEETINGS

24/05/2017 23/08/2017 29/08/2017 1/03/2017 17/11/2017

 Mr Abbey Witbooi (Chairperson) √ √ √ √ √

Rev. Frank Chikane (Deputy Chairman) √ √ √ * *
Prof Bongani Bantwini √ * √ √ *
Ms Gail Campbell * * * * *
Mr Sathie Gounden √ √ √ √ *
Ms Nandipha Madiba √ √ √ √ √

Mr Zeth Malele √ √ √ √ √

Ms Patricia Maloka √ √ √ √ √

Adv Lentswe Mokgatle √ √ √ √ √

Mr Andries Mthethwa (formerly Tshabalala) √ √ * √ √

Dr Vathiswa Papu-Zamxaka √ √ √ * √

Prof Khulekani Sitole √ √ √ √ √

KEY 
√ Present 
*  Apology Noted
# Absent
√* Teleconference

TABLE 1: BOARD MEETINGS ATTENDED
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DIRECTORS MEETING DATES SPECIAL MEETINGS

21/03/2017 19/04/2017 18/08/2017 16/11/2017 08/11/2017

Mr Sathie Gounden (Audit Committee Member) √ √ √ √ √

Mr Stephen Tibini (Audit Committee Member) √ * √ * √

Ms Nandipha Madiba (Audit Committee Member) * * * √ √

Ms Kgabiso Manthata (Audit Committee Member) √ √ √ √ √

KEY 
√ Present 
*  Apology Noted
# Absent
√* Teleconference

AUDIT & RISK COMMITTEE 
REPORT FOR THE YEAR  
ENDED 28 FEBRUARY 2018
The Audit and Risk Committee (ARC) herewith presents 
their report for the financial year ended 28 February 
2018, as required by the Companies Act 71 of 2008. 

AUDIT & RISK COMMITTEE MEMBERS & 
ATTENDANCE
The ARC was established in accordance with the 
provision of the Companies Act 71 of 2008. The ARC 
Charter requires that ARC comprise of a minimum of 
four members. 

The ARC consisted of four (4) members, half of whom 
are Board members and the others being Independent 
members (see Table 2 for membership and attendance  
of the ARC).

AUDIT & RISK COMMITTEE 
RESPONSIBILITY
The ARC reports that it has complied with its 
responsibilities arising from the ARC Charter.

The ARC has adopted appropriate formal terms of 
reference as its charter, has regulated its affairs in 
compliance with the charter and has discharged all its 
responsibilities as contained therein. 

INTERNAL AUDIT 
The Internal Audit was in their second year of 
appointment and the Annual Plan was approved for 
implementation. The work carried out was in accordance 
with the approved plan for the year.

In line with the King IV on Corporate Governance, 
Internal Audit is expected to provide the ARC and 
Management with assurance that the internal controls 
are appropriate and effective. The company follows a 
combined assurance approach. 

The Internal Auditors issued reports for areas of work 
conducted and made recommendations to Management 
for correction and actions to be implemented. Follow-up 
on work carried out in the prior year was also conducted 
which highlighted improvements made.

EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROL 
The ARC has reviewed the internal controls environment 
for effectiveness and adequacy. This was through review 
of the work conducted by the Internal Auditors, progress 
made by Management on the prior years’ audit findings 
and the report of the External Auditors.

Our assessment of these controls even though progress 
is visible, is that the overall control environment still 
require improvement.

Management has committed to implementing corrective 
action to avoid recurrence of the same findings in the 
coming financial years.

DIRECTORS MEETING DATES SPECIAL MEETINGS

24/05/2017 23/08/2017 29/08/2017 1/03/2017 17/11/2017

 Mr Abbey Witbooi (Chairperson) √ √ √ √ √

Rev. Frank Chikane (Deputy Chairman) √ √ √ * *
Prof Bongani Bantwini √ * √ √ *
Ms Gail Campbell * * * * *
Mr Sathie Gounden √ √ √ √ *
Ms Nandipha Madiba √ √ √ √ √

Mr Zeth Malele √ √ √ √ √

Ms Patricia Maloka √ √ √ √ √

Adv Lentswe Mokgatle √ √ √ √ √

Mr Andries Mthethwa (formerly Tshabalala) √ √ * √ √

Dr Vathiswa Papu-Zamxaka √ √ √ * √

Prof Khulekani Sitole √ √ √ √ √

KEY 
√ Present 
*  Apology Noted
# Absent
√* Teleconference

TABLE 2: AUDIT & RISK COMMITTEE MEETINGS ATTENDED

NON-CORE BUSINESS | CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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GOVERNANCE OF RISK
The ARC is responsible for oversight of the risk man-
agement function. The ARC has reviewed the risk 
registers, tracked prior years’ audit findings and  
performed an overall assessment of the risk  
environment. The governance of risk is not at a state 
desired by the ARC. The ARC has made recom-
mendations to Management on areas requiring  
improvements. 

THE QUALITY OF MANAGEMENT &  
QUARTERLY REPORTS 
The ARC was satisfied with the content and quality 
of management and quarterly reports prepared and 
issued during the year under review. The actual costs 
incurred were also monitored against the approved 
budget throughout the year. 

The ARC noted the improvements in the quality of the 
reports tabled by Management and made recommen-
dations towards remedying any shortcomings.

EVALUATION OF THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS
The ARC evaluated the Annual Financial Statements 
presented in this Annual Report. The Annual Financial 
Statements fairly present the financial performance, 
the cash flows, financial position and the results of the 
financial operations for the year ended 28 February 
2018.

The focus of the review of the Annual Financial  
Statements was on the following: 

• Significant financial reporting judgments and  
estimates contained in the annual financial  
statements

• Clarity and completeness of disclosure and  
adequacy thereof

• Quality and acceptability of, and any changes in, 
accounting policies and practices

• Compliance with accounting standards and legal 
requirements

• Significant adjustments and/or unadjusted  
differences resulting from the audit

• Reflection of unusual circumstances or events 
and management’s explanation for the accounting 
treatment adopted

• Reasons for major year-on-year fluctuations 
• Valuation of significant estimates
• Calculation and levels of general and specific 

provisions
• Write-offs and reversal thereof
• The basis for the going concern assumption. 

EXTERNAL AUDITOR’S REPORT
There are no unresolved issues raised by the  
External Auditors and the ARC accepts the conclusion 
and audit opinion of the External Auditors on the Annual  
Financial Statements.

The external audit function is independent of the en-
tity. The ARC has met with the External Auditors and  
acknowledges the diligence and co-operation of its 
team.

On behalf of the Audit and Risk Committee:

MR SATHIE GOUNDEN
CHAIRMAN OF THE AUDIT & RISK COMMITTEE
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The Board Procurement Committee (BPC) has an 
oversight role over the organisation’s procurement  
processes in terms of:

• Ensuring that there is an appropriate procurement 
system that is fair, equitable, transparent,  
competitive and cost effective

• Establishing effective, efficient and transparent 
systems of financial, risk management and  
internal controls

• Promoting the efficient, effective and economic 
use of resources

• Conducting effective planning and implementation 
of the procurement process

• Monitoring that the bid evaluation and adjudication 
process is conducted in an effective and  
transparent way in order to approve recommend 
bids tabled to the BPC.

The BPC met five times during the financial  year 
(see Table 3 for members’ attendance).  

DIRECTORS MEETING DATES SPECIAL MEETINGS

06/03/2017 28/03/2017 14/06/2017 27/11/2017 15/12/2017

Mr Ganelang Zeth Malele √ √ √ √ √

Adv Lentswe Mokgatle √ √ √ * √*
Dr Vathiswa Papu-Zamxaka √ * √ √ *
KEY 
√ Present 
*  Apology Noted
# Absent
√* Teleconference

TABLE 3: BOARD PROCUREMENT COMMITTEE MEETINGS ATTENDED

BOARD PROCUREMENT COMMITTEE

NON-CORE BUSINESS | CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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DIRECTORS SPECIAL MEETINGS

18/08/2017 18/12/2017 19/12/2017

Prof Bongani Douglas 
Bantwini

√ √ √

Ms Patricia Maloka √ √ √

Prof Khulekani Sitole √ √ √

KEY 
√ Present 
*  Apology Noted
# Absent
√* Teleconference

DIRECTORS MEETING DATES

26/04/2017 4/05/2017 3/08/2017 21/08/2017 21/09/2017 28/09/2017 9/11/2017

Prof Bongani Douglas 
Bantwini * √ √ * √ √ √

Ms Patricia Maloka √ * √ √ √ √ √

Prof Khulekani Sitole * * √ √ √ √ *

TABLE 4: FINANCE, BUSINESS & HUMAN RESOURCES BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS 
ATTENDED

The Finance Committee’s (FINCO) function is 
governed by Terms of Reference which effectively 
determine the areas of governance for the  
committee such as:

• Financial management and administration
• Human resources, Industrial relations and 

skills development and training
• Policy, legal matters and compliance
• Facilities, IT governance and asset  

management
• Tenant Management
• Marketing and Communications and 
• Health and Safety

The Finance, Business and HR Committee  
comprises of the following members:

• Ms Patricia Maloka (Chairperson)
• Prof Bongani Douglas Bantwini
• Prof Khulekani Sitole.

The committee meets on a quarterly basis, save 
for extenuating circumstances when special  
meetings were called. The attendance register for 
the meetings held is reflected in Table 4.

FINANCE, BUSINESS & HR COMMITTEE



47

DIRECTORS MEETING DATES

26/04/2017 4/05/2017 3/08/2017 21/08/2017 21/09/2017 28/09/2017 9/11/2017

Prof Bongani Douglas 
Bantwini * √ √ * √ √ √

Ms Patricia Maloka √ * √ √ √ √ √

Prof Khulekani Sitole * * √ √ √ √ *

The Social and Ethics Committee (SEC) was 
established in accordance to the provisions of the 
Companies Act 71 of 2008. The oversight role of 
the SEC covers organisational ethics, responsible 
corporate citizenship and sustainable development. 
The role of the committee encompasses not only 
organisational ethics but seeks to encourage the 
creation of value in society beyond organisational 
compliance.

The SEC is composed of the following members:

• Rev Frank Chikane (Chairperson)
• Ms Gail Campbell
• Mr Andries Mthethwa (formerly Tshabalala).

The SEC should meet twice a year, save for 
extenuating circumstances when special meetings 
should be called. However, the committee met 
on only one occasion during the financial year. 
The attendance register for the meeting held is 
reflected in the Table 5.

DIRECTORS MEETING DATES

21/02/2018

Rev. Frank Chikane (Deputy Chairman) *
Ms Gail Campbell √

Mr Andries Mthethwa (formerly Tshabalala) √

KEY 
√ Present 
*  Apology Noted
# Absent
√* Teleconference

TABLE 5: SOCIAL AND ETHICS BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS ATTENDED

SOCIAL & ETHICS COMMITTEE

NON-CORE BUSINESS | CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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GENERAL 
INFORMATION
COUNTRY OF INCORPORATION & 
DOMICILE
South Africa 

NATURE OF BUSINESS & PRINCIPAL 
ACTIVITIES
Science Centre

DIRECTORS
• Mr Abbey Witbooi (Chairperson)
• Rev Frank Chikane (Deputy chairperson)
• Prof Bongani Douglas Bantwini
• Ms Gail Campbell
• Mr Sathie Gounden
• Ms Nandipha Daphne Madiba
• Mr Ganelang Zeth Malele
• Adv Lentswe Mogatle
• Ms Patricia Maloka
• Mr Andries Mthethwa (formerly Tshabalala)
• Dr Vathiswa Papu-Zamxaka
• Dr Khulekani Sitole

REGISTERED OFFICE
Sci-Bono Discovery Centre
Cnr. Miriam Makeba & Helen Joseph Street
Newtown 
2001

BUSINESS ADDRESS
Sci-Bono Discovery Centre
Cnr. Miriam Makeba & Helen Joseph Street
Newtown 
2001

POSTAL ADDRESS
P.O Box 61882 
Marshalltown 
2107

BANKERS
Standard Bank of South Africa
Nedbank

AUDITORS
RAiN Chartered Accountants Incorporated
Registered Auditors 

SECRETARY
Ms Mbali Mtshali 

TAX REFERENCE NUMBER
9058859159

PREPARER
The financial statements were compiled  
internally by: Mr Phehello Tsotetsi (CFO)
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DIRECTORS’ 
RESPONSIBILITY
     
The directors are responsible for the preparation, 
integrity and presentation of the annual financial 
statements of the Sci-Bono Discovery Centre. The  
annual financial statements have been prepared 
in accordance with the International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and in accordance with 
the requirements of the Companies Act 71 of 2008 and 
include amounts based on judgements and estimates 
made by Management.

The directors consider that, having applied IFRS in the 
preparation of the Annual Financial Statements, they 
have used the most appropriate accounting policies, 
consistently applied with those of the prior years and 
supported by reasonable and prudent judgements 
and estimates, and that the IFRS that they consider 
applicable have been followed. The directors are 
satisfied that the information contained in the annual 
financial statements fairly present the results of the 
operations for the year, and the financial performance, 
cash flows and position of the organization as at year 
end, in accordance with IFRS.

The directors are also responsible for the systems 
of internal controls. These are designed to provide 
reasonable, but not absolute assurance as to 
the reliability of the annual financial statements 
and to adequately safeguard, verify and maintain 
accountability of assets as well as prevent and detect 
material misstatements and loss. Nothing has come 
to the attention of the directors to indicate that any 

material breakdown in the functioning of these controls, 
procedures and systems has occurred during the year.

The annual financial statements are prepared on a going 
concern basis. Nothing has come to the attention of the 
directors to indicate that the organization will not be 
able to continue as a going concern for the foreseeable 
future, based on forecasts and available accumulated 
reserves. The annual financial statements support the 
viability of this organization.

The organization’s auditors are RAiN Chartered 
Accounts Inc. and their unqualified audit opinion is 
presented on page 51. The external auditors were given 
unrestricted access to all the financial records and 
related information, including minutes of the Board of 
Directors and its committees. The directors believe that 
all the representations made to the external auditors 
during their audit are valid and appropriate.

The annual financial statements set out on pages 55 to 
86 were approved by the Board of Directors on the 10th 
January 2019 and are signed on its behalf by:

MR ABBEY WITBOOI
BOARD CHAIRPERSON

DR MORRISON MORETSELE CHAKANE 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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INDEPENDENT  
AUDITORS’  
REPORT
To the stakeholders of Sci-Bono Discovery Centre NPC 
(Sci-Bono).
 

REPORT ON THE ANNUAL  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPINION 
We have audited the annual financial statements of 
Sci-Bono Discovery Centre NPC set out on pages 55 to 
86, which comprise the statement of financial position 
as at 28 February 2018. It also includes the statement 
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, 
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash 
flows for the year then ended as well as notes on the 
annual financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies. 

In our opinion, the annual financial statements present 
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position 
of Sci-Bono Discovery Centre NPC as at 28 February 
2018, and its financial performance and cash flows for 
the year then ended in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of 
the Companies Act 71 of 2008. 

BASIS FOR OPINION 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International 
Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under 

those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the annual financial 
statements section of our report. We are independent 
of the company in accordance with the Independent 
Regulatory Board for Auditors Code of Professional 
Conduct for Registered Auditors (IRBA Code) and other 
independence requirements applicable to performing 
audits of annual financial statements in South Africa. 
We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with the IRBA Code and in accordance with 
other ethical requirements applicable to performing 
audits in South Africa. The IRBA Code is consistent 
with the International Ethics Standards Board for 
Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants 
(Parts A and B). We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. 

OTHER INFORMATION 
The directors are responsible for the other information. 
The other information comprises the Directors’ Report 
and the Audit Committee’s Report as required by the 
Companies Act 71 of 2008, which we obtained prior 
to the date of this report. Other information does 
not include the annual financial statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the annual financial statements does 
not cover the other information and we do not express 
an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion 
thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the annual financial 
statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the 
other information is materially inconsistent with the 
annual financial statements or our knowledge obtained 

in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other information, we are required to report that fact. 
We have nothing to report in this regard. 
 
RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS 
FOR THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS 
The directors are responsible for the preparation and 
fair presentation of the annual financial statements 
in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 
71 of 2008, and for such internal control as the directors 
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of 
annual financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the annual financial statements, the 
directors are responsible for assessing the company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, 
as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
the directors either intend to liquidate the company to  
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to 
do so. 

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE 
AUDIT OF THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL  
STATEMENTS 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the annual financial statements are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 

FINANCIALS | DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY | INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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conducted in accordance with International Standards 
on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in 
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these annual financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with International 
Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional 
judgement and maintain professional scepticism 
throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material 
misstatement of the annual financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations or the override of internal 
control

• Obtain an understanding of internal control 
relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
company’s internal control

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by the directors

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ 
use of the going concern basis of accounting and 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a 
material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the annual 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions 
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events 
or conditions may cause the company to cease to 
continue as a going concern

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure 
and content of the annual financial statements, 
including the disclosures and whether the annual 
financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves 
fair presentation. 

We communicate with the directors regarding, among 
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during 
our audit. 
 
REPORT ON AUDIT OF COMPLIANCE WITH 
LEGISLATION 
We performed procedures to obtain evidence that 
entity had complied with legislation regarding financial 
matters, financial management and other related 
matters, but not to gather evidence to express assurance 
thereon. We did not identify any instances of material 
non-compliance with specific matters in key legislation. 
 

INTERNAL CONTROL 
We considered internal control relevant to our audit of 
the annual financial statements and compliance with 
legislation, however the objective is not to express 
any form of assurance thereon. We did not identify any 
significant deficiencies in internal control. 
 
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 
In terms of the IRBA Rule published in Government 
Gazette Number 39475 dated 4 December 2015, we 
report that RAiN Chartered Accountants audited  
Sci-Bono Discovery Centre NPC for the first time in 
2018. 

RAiN Chartered Accountants Incorporated 
Per: I.E. Pierce | Director | Registered Auditor 
11 December 2018 | Johannesburg 
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DIRECTORS’ 
REPORT
The directors have pleasure in submitting their report 
on the financial statements of Sci-Bono Discovery 
Centre NPC for the year ended 28 February 2018.

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL RESULTS & 
ACTIVITIES
The financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards requirements of the Companies Act 71 
of 2008. The accounting policies have been applied 
consistently compared to the prior year. Full details of 
the financial position, results of operations and cash 
flows of the company are set out in these financial 
statements.

DIRECTORATE  
The directors in office at the date of this report are as 
per photos and captions on the next page.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 
No material events have occurred subsequent to 
financial year end.

GOING CONCERN    
The directors believe that the company has adequate 
financial resources to continue in operation for the 
foreseeable future and accordingly the financial 
statements have been prepared on a going concern 
basis. The directors are convinced that the company is 
in a sound financial position and that it has access to 
enough borrowing facilities to meet its foreseeable cash 

requirements. The directors are not aware of any new 
material changes that may adversely impact the pending  
changes to legislation which may affect the company.

AUDITORS    
RAiN Chartered Accountants Incorporated is the 
organisation’s auditing firm for the 2018 financial 
year.  
 

COMPANY 
SECRETARY’S 
REPORT 
    
The company secretary is Ms Mbali Mtshali.  
   
I hereby confirm, in my capacity as the secretary of 
Sci-Bono Discovery Centre NPC that for the year  
ended 28 February 2018, the entity has filed all required 
returns and notices in terms of the Companies Act 71 
of 2008 and that all such returns and notices are to the 
best of my knowledge and belief true, correct and up to 
date.

POSTAL ADDRESS    
P.O Box 61882 
Marshalltown
2107  

BUSINESS ADDRESS   
Sci-Bono Discovery Centre
Cnr. Miriam Makeba & Helen Joseph Street
Newtown 
Johannesburg 
2001 
  
The supplementary information presented does not 
form part of the financial statements and is unaudited.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT 28 FEBRUARY 2018

 Restated 
 2018  2017 

Note(s)  R  R 
Assets
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 3  416,816,150  421,891,903 
Intangible assets 4  53,794  658,893 

 416,869,944  422,550,796 
Current Assets
Trade and other receivables 5  34,796,578  41,355,794 
Other financial assets 6  178,619,990  230,231,041 
Cash and cash equivalents 7  5,770,630  18,468,618 

 219,187,198  290,055,453 
Total Assets 636,057,142  712,606,249 

 
Reserves and Liabilities
Revaluation reserves 8 168,167,790  170,880,173 
Retained surplus  258,351,312  220,276,296 

 426,519,102  391,156,469 
Liabilities  
Non-Current Liabilities
Deferred income (Government grants) 9 192,925,829  196,088,547 

Current Liabilities  

Trade and other payables 10 10,668,665  18,846,611 

Deferred income (Government grants) 9 4,500,000  105,321,257 
Provisions 11  1,443,546  1,193,367 

16,612,210  125,361,235 
Total Liabilities  209,538,040  321,449,782 
Total Reserves and Liabilities 636,057,142  712,606,249 
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 Restated 
 2018  2017 

Note(s)  R  R 

Revenue 12  1,650,324  1,253,596 

Other income 13  358,658,830  572,645,866 

Total expenditure 25  (343,955,094)  (602,816,535)

Operating surplus 14  16,354,060  (28,917,073)

Investment revenue 15  19,010,068  25,293,192 

Finance costs 16  (1,495)  (13,287)

Surplus / (Deficit) for the year  35,362,633  (3,637,168)

Other comprehensive surplus:

Items that will not be reclassified to surplus or loss:

Gains and losses on property revaluation  -  86,704,227 

Other comprehensive surplus for the year net of taxation  -  86,704,227 

Total surplus for the year  35,362,633  83,067,059 

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE SURPLUS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 28 FEBRUARY 2018
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN RESERVES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 28 FEBRUARY 2018 Revaluation  Retained  Total reserves 

Reserve  surplus 
R  R  R 

Balance at 01 March 2014  88,748,935  100,681,405  189,430,340 

Surplus for the year  -  25,344,334  25,344,334 

Total comprehensive surplus for the year  -  25,344,334  25,344,334 

Transfer between reserves  (1,344,906)  1,344,906  - 

Total contributions and distributions recognised directly in reserves (1,344,906) 1,344,906 - 

Balance at 01 March 2015  87,404,029  127,370,645  214,774,674 

Surplus for the year  -  73,927,434  73,927,434 

Total comprehensive surplus for the year  -  73,927,434  73,927,434 

Transfer between reserves  (1,344,906)  1,344,906  - 

Total contributions and distributions recognised directly in reserves  (1,344,906)  1,344,906  - 

Balance at 28 February 2016  86,059,123  202,642,985  288,702,108 

Prior period error

 - Revenue not recognised in the prior financial years relating to Donor Grant Funding -   19,387,304  19,387,304 

Restated Opening Balance as at 01 March 2016  86,059,123  222,030,289  308,089,412 

Surplus for the year 8  86,704,227  (3,637,170)  83,067,057 

Adjustments relating to the 2017 financial year - -  - 

Total comprehensive surplus for the year 10  86,704,227  (3,637,170)  83,067,057 

Transfer between reserves  (1,883,177)  1,883,177  - 

Total contributions and distributions recognised directly in reserves  (1,883,177)  1,883,177  - 

Balance at 28 February 2017  170,880,173  220,276,296  391,156,469 

Surplus for the year  -  35,362,633  35,362,633 

Total comprehensive surplus for the year  -  35,362,633  35,362,633 

Transfer between reserves  (2,712,383) 2,712,384  - 

Total contributions and distributions recognised directly in reserves  (2,712,383)  2,712,384  - 

Balance at 28 February 2018  168,167,790  258,351,312  426,519,102 

FINANCIALS | FINANCIALSTATEMENTS
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 28 FEBRUARY 2018

 Restated 
 2018  2017 

Note(s)  R  R 

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations 19  (78,488,082)  (146,081,587)

Investment revenue  19,010,068  25,293,192 

Finance costs  (1,495)  (13,287)

Net cash from operating activities  (59,479,509)  (120,801,682)

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 3  (4,790,317)  (4,169,412)

Proceeds from insurance claim/sale of assets  -  205,855 

Sale of financial assets  51,611,051  129,832,705 

Net cash from investing activities  46,820,734  125,869,148 

Total cash movement for the year  (12,658,775)  5,067,467 

Cash at the beginning of the year  18,468,617  13,233,458 

Effect of exchange rate movement on cash balances  (39,213)  167,692 

Total cash at end of the year 7  5,770,630  18,468,617 
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ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES
PRESENTATION OF  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The audited annual financial statements have been  
prepared in accordance with International Financial  
Reporting Standards, and the Companies Act 71 of 
2008. The financial statements have been prepared on 
the historical cost basis, and incorporate the principal  
accounting policies set out below. They are presented in 
South African Rands.

These accounting policies are consistent with the  
previous period.

Significant judgements and sources of estimation 
uncertainty, in preparing the audited annual financial 
statements, management is required to make  
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts 
represented in the financial statements and related 
disclosures. Use of available information and the 
application of judgement is inherent in the formation  
of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ 
from these estimates which may be material to the 
financial statements.

TRADE RECEIVABLES & LOANS  
RECEIVABLE
The company assesses its Trade receivables and Loans 
receivable for impairment at the end of each reporting 
period. In determining whether an impairment loss 
should be recorded in surplus or loss, the company 

makes judgements as to whether there is observable 
data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated 
future cash flows from a financial asset.

FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION
The carrying value less impairment provision of 
trade receivables are assumed to approximate their 
fair values. The carrying value of trade creditors are 
assumed to approximate their fair values.

DEFERRED INCOME
Management applies judgement in assessing whether 
grant income cannot be matched to the related cost and 
therefore will be deferred.

DEPRECIATION RATES & RESIDUAL 
VALUES
Management applies estimation and judgement in  
determining the useful lives and residual values of 
property, plant and equipment.

VALUATION OF EXHIBITS
Management view the exhibits as unique assets, however 
management will still apply judgement in determining 
the useful lives and fair value of the exhibitions under 
Property, Plant and Equipment.

The exhibits will be treated under the normal Property, 
Plant and Equipment accounting policy.

REVALUATION OF BUILDINGS
Land and buildings are revalued independently every 
5 years. A more frequent valuation will be obtained if 
there is evidence that indicates this is necessary. The 
buildings were revalued based on market equivalent 
values. 

Revaluations are based on current market conditions.

PROPERTY, PLANT &  
EQUIPMENT
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
recognised as an asset when:

• it is probable that future economic benefits 
associated with the item will flow to the company 

• the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at 
cost.

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or 
construct an item of property, plant and equipment 
and costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part 
of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in 
the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and 
equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is 
derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses 
except for buildings which is carried at revalued amount 
being the fair value at the date of revaluation less any 
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent 
accumulated impairment losses.

Revaluations are made with sufficient regularity such 
that the carrying amount does not differ materially from 
that which would be determined using fair value at the 
end of the reporting period.

FINANCIALS | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS | ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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Any increase in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result 
of a revaluation, is recognised to other comprehensive 
income and accumulated in the revaluation surplus in 
equity. The increase is recognised in surplus or loss to 
the extent that it reverses are valuation decrease of the 
same asset previously recognised in surplus or loss.

Any decrease in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result 
of a revaluation, is recognised in surplus or loss in the 
current period.

The decrease is recognised in other comprehensive 
income to the extent of any credit balance existing in 
the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset. The 
decrease recognised in other comprehensive income 
reduces the amount accumulated in the revaluation 
surplus in Reserves.

The revaluation surplus in reserves related to a specific 
item of property, plant and equipment is transferred 
directly to retained earnings as the asset is used. The 
amount transferred is equal to the difference between 
depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount 
and depreciation based on the original cost of the asset.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the 
straight line basis over their expected useful lives to 
their estimated residual value.

The useful lives of items of property, plant and 
equipment have been assessed as follows:

ITEM AVERAGE    USEFUL LIFE
Appliances   4 years
Buildings   70 years
Computer equipment  4 years
Exhibits    10 years

Furniture and fixtures  7 years
Laboratory equipment  4 years
Motor vehicles   7 years
Office equipment   5 years
Plant and machinery  5 years
Signage    4 years
Telephone and equipment 7 years
Tools    5 years

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method 
of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting 
period. If the expectations differ from previous 
estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in 
accounting estimate.

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised 
in surplus or loss unless it is included in the carrying 
amount of another asset.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an 
item of property, plant and equipment is included in 
surplus or loss when the item is derecognised. The 
gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item 
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, 
and the carrying amount of the item.

CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS
The company has capital work in progress that are 
disclosed as property, plant and equipment for the 
current projects. The cost of these projects will be 
capitalised to the asset. Completed projects will be 
recognised under property, plant and equipment on 
completion.

Once the asset has reached the location and condition 

as intended by management, capitalisation of the costs 
cease. These costs are expensed in the statement of 
surplus.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
An intangible asset is recognised when:

• it is probable that the expected future economic 
benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow 
to the entity and

• the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.

Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of 
an internal project) is recognised as an expense when 
it is incurred.

An intangible asset arising from development (or 
from the development phase of an internal project) is 
recognised when:

• it is technically feasible to complete the asset so 
that it will be available for use or sale

• there is an intention to complete and use or sell it.
• there is an ability to use or sell it
• it will generate probable future economic benefits.
• there are available technical, financial and other 

resources to complete the development and to use 
or sell the asset

• the expenditure attributable to the asset during its 
development can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any 
accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
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The amortisation period and the amortisation method 
for intangible assets are reviewed every period-end.
Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible 
assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values 
as follows:

ITEM AVERAGE    USEFUL LIFE
Software   5 years

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

CLASSIFICATION
The company classifies financial assets and financial 
liabilities into the following categories:

• financial assets at fair value through surplus or 
loss - designated

• loans and receivables
• financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.

Classification depends on the purpose for which the 
financial instruments were obtained / incurred and 
takes place at initial recognition. Classification is re-
assessed on an annual basis, except for derivatives 
and financial assets designated as at fair value through 
surplus or loss, which shall not be classified out of the 
fair value through surplus or loss category.

INITIAL RECOGNITION & MEASUREMENT
Financial instruments are recognised initially when the 
company becomes a party to the contractual provisions 
of the instruments.

The company classifies financial instruments, or their 
component parts, on initial recognition as a financial 
asset, a financial liability or a reserves instrument 

in accordance with the substance of the contractual 
arrangement.

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair 
value, except for Reserves investments for which a fair 
value is not determinable, which are measured at cost 
and are classified as available-for-sale financial assets.
For financial instruments which are not at fair value 
through surplus or loss, transaction costs are included 
in the initial measurement of the instrument.

Transaction costs on financial instruments at fair value 
through surplus or loss are recognised in surplus or 
loss.

SUBSEQUENT MEASUREMENT
Financial instruments at fair value through surplus 
or loss are subsequently measured at fair value, with 
gains and losses arising from changes in fair value 
being included in surplus or loss for the period.

Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost, using the effective interest method, 
less accumulated impairment losses.
Financial liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest 
method.

DERECOGNITION
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to 
receive cash flows from the investments have expired or 
have been transferred and the company has transferred 
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

FAIR VALUE DETERMINATION
The fair values of quoted investments are based on 
current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset 
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is not active (and for unlisted securities), the company 
establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. 
These include the use of recent arm’s length 
transactions, reference to other instruments that are 
substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, 
and option pricing models making maximum use of 
market inputs and relying as little as possible on entity-
specific inputs.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition 
at fair value, and are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. 
Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable 
amounts are recognised in surplus or loss when there is 
objective evidence that the asset is impaired. Significant 
financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the 
debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, 
and default or delinquency in payments (more than 30 
days overdue) are considered indicators that the trade 
receivable is impaired. The allowance recognised is 
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying 
amount and the present value of estimated future cash 
flows discounted at the effective interest rate computed 
at initial recognition.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through 
the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the 
loss is recognised in surplus or loss within operating 
expenses. When a trade receivable is uncollectable, 
it is written off against the allowance account for 
trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts 
previously written off are credited against operating 
expenses in surplus or loss.

Trade and other receivables are classified as loans and 
receivables.

TRADE & OTHER PAYABLES
Trade payables are initially measured at fair value, and 
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using 
the effective interest rate method.

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and 
demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid 
investments that are readily convertible to a known 
amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk 
of changes in value. These are initially and subsequently 
recorded at fair value.

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS
The company assesses at each end of the reporting 
period whether there is any indication that an asset may 
be impaired. If any such indication exists, the company 
estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.

If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, 
the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual 
asset. If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable 
amount of the individual asset, the recoverable amount 
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs 
is determined.

The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-
generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs 
to sell and its value in use.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its 
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is 
reduced to its recoverable amount. That reduction is an 
impairment loss.

An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any 
accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised 
immediately in surplus or loss. Any impairment loss of 
a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.

An entity assesses at each reporting date whether there 
is any indication that an impairment loss recognised 
in prior periods for assets other than goodwill may 
no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such 
indication exists, the recoverable amounts of those 
assets are estimated.

A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost 
less accumulated depreciation or amortisation other 
than goodwill is recognised immediately in surplus or 
loss. Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued 
asset is treated as a revaluation increase.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

SHORT-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those 
payable within 12 months after the service is rendered, 
such as paid vacation leave and sick leave, bonuses, 
and non-monetary benefits such as medical care), are 
recognised in the period in which the service is rendered 
and are not discounted.

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLANS
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit 
plans are charged as an expense as they fall due.
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PROVISIONS & 
CONTINGENCIES
Provisions are recognised when:

• the company has a present obligation as a result 
of a past event

• it is probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to 
settle the obligation and

• a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the present value of the 
expenditure expected to be required to settle the 
obligation. The amount of a provision is the present value 
of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the 
obligation. The provision shall be initially recognised at 
the best possible estimate at the reporting date. This 
value should take into account, if material, the time 
value of money. When the provision has a re-imbursive 
condition from a third party, the reimbursement asset 
is to be recognised separately on when it is virtually 
certain payment will be received.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating 
losses.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not 
recognised.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS
Government grants are recognised when there is 
reasonable assurance that:

• the company will comply with the conditions 
attaching to them and

• the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised as income over the 
periods necessary to match them with the related costs 
that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants related to assets, including non-
monetary grants at fair value, are presented in the 
statement of financial position by setting up the grant 
as deferred income or by deducting the grant in arriving 
at the carrying amount of the asset.

Grants related to income are presented as a credit in 
the surplus or loss (separately).

REVENUE
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the 
consideration received or receivable and represents the 
amounts receivable for goods and services provided in 
the normal course of business, net of trade discounts 
and volume rebates, and value added tax.

Interest is recognised, in surplus or loss, using the 
effective interest rate method.

Gate entrance fee is recognised when the amount is 
received.

Donations are recognised to the extent that it is probable 
that future economic benefits will flow into the company 
and revenue can be reliably measured.

BORROWING COSTS
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying 
asset are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset 
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until such time as the asset is ready for its intended use. 
The amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation 
is determined as follows:

• Actual borrowing costs on funds specifically 
borrowed for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying 
asset less any temporary investment of those 
borrowings

• Weighted average of the borrowing costs 
applicable to the entity on funds generally 
borrowed for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying 
asset. The borrowing costs capitalised do not 
exceed the total borrowing costs incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs commences when:

• expenditures for the asset have occurred
• borrowing costs have been incurred, and activities 

that are necessary to prepare the asset for its 
intended use or sale are in progress.

Capitalisation is suspended during extended periods in 
which active development is interrupted.

Capitalisation ceases when substantially all the 
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for 
its intended use or sale are complete.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense 
in the period in which they are incurred.

TRANSLATION OF FOREIGN 
CURRENCIES

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS
A foreign currency transaction is recorded, on initial 
recognition in Rands, by applying to the foreign currency 
amount the spot exchange rate between the functional 
currency and the foreign currency at the date of the 
transaction.

At the end of the reporting period:

• foreign currency monetary items are translated 
using the closing rate

• non-monetary items that are measured in terms of 
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated 
using the exchange rate at the date  
of the transaction

• non-monetary items that are measured at fair 
value in a foreign currency are translated using 
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value 
was determined.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of 
monetary items or on translating monetary items at 
rates different from those at which they were translated 
on initial recognition during the period or in previous 
financial statements are recognised in surplus or loss 
in the period in which they arise.

DEFERRED INCOME
Government grants shall be recognised in surplus or 
loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which 
the entity recognises as expenses the related costs for 
which the grants are intended to compensate.

Grants related to income are presented as part of 
surplus or loss, either separately or under a general 
heading such as ‘Other income’; alternatively, they are 
deducted in reporting the related expense.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STANDARD AMENDMENT  DATE ISSUED  EFFECTIVE DATE

IFRS 7: Financial Instruments: Replace IAS 39 with regards to accounting requirements 
for financial instruments

 July 2014 Annual periods beginning on or after  
01 January 2018 

IFRS 15: Revenue from Provide a single, principle based five-step model to be 
applied to all customer contracts

 May 2014 Annual periods beginning on or after  
01 January 2018 

IFRS 16: Leases Specifies recognition, measurement, presentation and 
disclosure of the leases

 January 2016 Annual periods beginning on or after  
01 January 2019 

IFRS 17: Insurance contracts Measurement of insurance liabilities at current  
fulfillment value and provide more uniform 
measurement and presentation approach for all 
insurance contracts

 May 2017 Annual periods beginning on or after  
01 January 2021 

INTERPRETATIONS AMENDMENT DATE ISSUED EFFECTIVE DATE

IFRIC 22: Foreign currency  
transactions and advance  
considerations

Addresses foreign currency transactions where there 
are prepayment assets or deferred liabilities which are 
non-monetary

December 2016 Annual periods beginning on or after  
01 January 2018

IFRIC 23: Uncertainty over income  
tax treatments

Addresses determination of taxable profit/loss, tax base, 
unused tax loss/credits and tax rates where there is 
uncertainty over tax treatment under IAS 12

June 2017 Annual periods beginning on or after  
01 January 2019

FINANCIALS | NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 NEW STANDARDS, PRONOUNCEMENTS & INTERPRETATIONS
     
Standards, pronouncements and interpretations not yet effective.

The company has chosen not to early adopt the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are mandatory for the company’s accounting 
periods beginning on or after 01 March 2018 or later periods:
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Figures in Rand

3 PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

 2018 2017

 R R

Cost /  Accumulated 
 Carrying value 

Cost / Accumulated 
 Carrying value 

Valuation  depreciation Valuation depreciation

Appliances 64,276  (50,466)  13,810 65,343 (47,108) 18,235

Buildings 442,093,412 (40,073,182)  402,020,230 441,449,472 (34,492,935) 406,956,537

Capital work in progress 719,014  -  719,014 22,947 - 22,947

Computer equipment 14,472,867 (8,283,800)  6,189,067 12,195,985 (5,990,687) 6,205,298

Exhibits 14,189,139 (10,949,258)  3,239,881 15,169,983 (11,130,563) 4,039,420

Furniture and fixtures 4,525,915 (2,895,572)  1,630,343 4,340,413 (2,419,117) 1,921,296

Laboratory equipment 1,130,630  (725,967)  404,663 1,136,630 (576,197) 560,433

Motor vehicles 1,882,071  (874,901)  1,007,170 1,224,821 (705,141) 519,680

Office equipment 3,734,196 (2,310,738)  1,423,458 3,411,200 (1,954,149) 1,457,051

Signage 236,575  (130,625)  105,950 236,575 (106,845) 129,730

Telephone equipment 207,334  (160,147)  47,187 199,654 (154,474) 45,180

Tools 146,165  (130,788)  15,377 146,165 (130,069) 16,096

Total 483,401,594 (66,585,444)  416,816,150 479,599,188  (57,707,289) 421,891,903

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 28 FEBRUARY 2018
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Figures in Rand

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2018

Opening balance  Additions  Disposals  
at cost Revaluation

Other  
movements 
relating to 

prior period

Depreciation

 Accumulated 
depreciation 
on disposed 

assets 

Carrying 
amounts

Appliances  18,235  - (1,068) - -  (4,320)  963  13,810 

Buildings  406,956,536  643,940 - - - (5,580,246) -  402,020,230 

Capital work in progress  22,947  696,067 - - -  - -  719,014 

Computer equipment  6,205,297  2,276,882 - - - (2,293,112)  -  6,189,067 

Exhibits  4,039,419  - (980,844) - -  (645,421)  826,727  3,239,881 

Furniture and fixtures  1,921,296  185,502 - - - (476,455) -  1,630,343 

Laboratory equipment  560,432  - (6,000) - - (152,019) 2,250  404,663

Motor vehicles  519,680  657,250 - - - (169,760) -  1,007,170 

Office equipment  1,457,051  322,996 - - - (356,589) -  1,423,458 

Signage  129,730  - - - -  (23,780) -  105,950 

Telephone equipment  45,180  7,680 - - -  (5,673) -  47,187 

Tools  16,096  - - - -  (719) -  15,377 

 421,891,899 4,790,317 (987,912)  -  - (9,708,094)  829,940  416,816,150 
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Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2017

Opening Balance  Additions  Disposals at 
Cost Revaluation

Other  
movements  
relating to 

prior period

Depreciation

 Accumulated 
Depreciation 
on Disposed 

Assets 

Carrying 
Amounts

Appliances  8,910  13,052 - -  (13)  (3,714) -  18,235 

Buildings  325,172,263  251,597 -  86,704,227  (1)  (5,171,550) -  406,956,537 

Capital work in progress  22,947  - - - -  - -  22,947 

Computer equipment  5,106,032  3,199,802  (25,561) -  (34,487)  (2,045,520)  5,032  6,205,298 

Exhibits  4,948,721  - - -  (84,686)  (824,615) -  4,039,420 

Furniture and fixtures  2,392,043  16,720  (5,879) -  (654)  (482,257)  1,323  1,921,296 

Laboratory equipment  718,961  - - -  1,117  (159,645) -  560,433 

Motor vehicles  661,578  -  (163,632) -  -  (125,535)  147,268  519,680 

Office equipment  1,183,725  674,441 - -  (26,184)  (374,931) -  1,457,051 

Signage  153,512  - - -  (1)  (23,781) -  129,730 

Telephone equipment  38,017  13,800 - -  -  (6,637) -  45,180 

Tools  18,931  - - -  -  (2,835) -  16,096 

 340,425,640  4,169,412 (195,071) 86,704,227 (144,910) (9,221,020)  153,623  421,891,903 
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REVALUATION OF BUILDINGS    
Land and buildings are re-valued independently every 5 years. Revaluations are 
performed with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amounts do not differ 
materially from those that would be determined using fair values at the end of each 
reporting period. Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of such land 
and buildings is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in 
equity, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset 
previously recognised in profit or loss, in which case the increase is credited to profit 
and loss to the extent of the decrease previously expensed. A decrease in the carrying 
amount arising on the revaluation of such land and buildings is recognised in profit or 
loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the properties revaluation 
reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that asset. The buildings were not 
revalued during the year. The last revaluation was on 1 August 2016 based on market  
equivalent values in the area.
   
These assumptions were based on current market conditions in 2016.  
   
The carrying value of the revalued assets under the cost model would have been: 

A register containing the information required by Regulation 25(3) of the Companies 
Regulations, 2011 is available for inspection at the registered office of the company.

 Restated 
 2018  2017 

 R  R 

Buildings  284,980,569  284,728,972 
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4 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

2018  2017

 R  R

 Cost  Accumulated  
amortisation  Carrying value  Cost  Accumulated 

amortisation  Carrying value 

Software 329,995  (276,201)  53,794 1,079,668 (420,775) 658,893

Website development cost 49,840 (49,840)  - 49,840 (49,840)  - 

Total 379,835  (326,041)  53,794  1,129,508 (470,615)  658,893 

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2018

 Opening balance  Additions  Diposables  
at cost Amortisation Other 

movements

Accumulated  
amortisation on 

disposed 
assets

Carrying 
amounts

Software  658,893 -  (749,673) (151,553) - (296,127) 53,794

Website development cost  - - - - - - -

 658,893  -  (749,673) (151,553) - (296,127) 53,794

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2017

Opening balance Additions  Diposables  
at cost Amortisation Other 

movements

Accumulated  
amortisation on 

disposed 
assets

Carrying 
amounts

Software  1,079,668  -  - (420,775) - - 658,893

Website development cost  - -  - - - - -

 1,079,668 -  - (420,775) - - 658,893
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Restated
 2018  2017 

 R  R 

5 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (NET OF IMPAIRED AMOUNT) 

Trade receivables net of allowance  822,498  2,308,502 

Prepayments  540,073  11,090,224 

Deposits  293,096  85,337 

VAT 33,116,318  27,388,660 

Sundry receivables  24,593  483,071 

 34,796,578  41,355,794 

Gross receivables can be analysed as follows:

2018 Advances  Current not yet 
past due 

 Past due but 
not impaired 

Impaired 
amount

Total gross 
amount

Advances 540,073  -  -  - 540,073

Trade receivables  - -  1,351,493  (528,995) 822,498

Sundry receivables - -  434,230  (409,638) 24,593

VAT  - -  33,116,318  - 33,116,318

Deposits  - -  293,097  - 293,096

540,073  -  35,195,138 (938,633) 34,796,578
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Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2018

 Opening balance  Additions  Diposables  
at cost Amortisation Other 

movements

Accumulated  
amortisation on 

disposed 
assets

Carrying 
amounts

Software  658,893 -  (749,673) (151,553) - (296,127) 53,794

Website development cost  - - - - - - -

 658,893  -  (749,673) (151,553) - (296,127) 53,794

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2017

Opening balance Additions  Diposables  
at cost Amortisation Other 

movements

Accumulated  
amortisation on 

disposed 
assets

Carrying 
amounts

Software  1,079,668  -  - (420,775) - - 658,893

Website development cost  - -  - - - - -

 1,079,668 -  - (420,775) - - 658,893
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2017 Advances  Current not yet  
past due 

 Past due but not  
impaired  Impaired amount Total gross amount

Advances 11,090,224  -  -  - 11,090,224

Trade receivables  -  38,784  2,542,901  (273,183) 2,308,502

Sundry receivables -  33,115  449,956  (371,837) 111,233

VAT  -  34,071,615  -  (6,311,117) 27,760,498

Deposits  -  85,337  -  - 85,337

11,090,224  34,228,851  2,992,856  (6,956,137) 41,355,794

An amount of R6,870,086 has been approved by the Board for write-off in relation to vat claimed from SARS. The amount was deemed irrecoverable following interactions 
with the South African Receiver of Revenue. The amount reflected on this note as VAT receivable is net of the amount written-off. A provision for this write-off was already 
raised in the prior financial years

The amount that was provided for in the prior financial year was R6,311,118.
The write-off of the amount as irrecoverable has led to the provision for doubtful debt be write-back as per note 13.

Trade and other receivables past due but not impaired
The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired is as follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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 Restated 
 2018  2017 

 R  R 

Current  142,040  - 

30 - 60 days  600,755  27,140 

61 - 90 days  503,601  14,657 

91 - 120 days  30,097  2,019,182 

121 - 150 days  75,000  37,642 

>150 days  -  444,280 

 1,351,493  2,542,901 

Trade and other receivables impaired. 
As of 28 February 2018, trade and other receivables of R528,995 (2017: R273,183) were impaired and provided for. 
The amount has not changed from the prior year. The ageing of these receivables is as follows:

> 150 days 528,995  273,183
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 Restated 
 2018  2017 

 R  R 

6 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

At fair value through surplus or loss - designated

Nedgroup Investments Core Income Fund C2 177,078,084 223,902,345 

Nedgroup Investment Core Income ABIL Retention Fund A  1,541,906  6,328,696 

178,619,990 230,231,041 

Current assets

Designated as a fair value financial asset through profit or loss 178,619,990 230,231,041 

Fair value information  
Financial assets at fair value through surplus or loss are recognised at fair value, which is therefore equal to their carrying amounts.

The following classes of financial assets at fair value through surplus or loss are measured to fair value using quoted market prices.

The listed units as at 28 February 2018 are as follows: 
Nedbank Group Investment Core Income fund C2  175,700,309.35 units at 100,16 cents / unit
Nedgroup Core Income ABIL Retention Fund A  1,420,063.65 units at 107,7 cents / unit
  
Fair value hierarchy of financial assets at fair value through surplus or loss
For financial assets recognised at fair value, disclosure is required of a fair value hierarchy which reflects the significance of the inputs used to make the measurements.

Level 1 represents those assets which are measured using unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets.
Level 2 applies inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the assets either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices).
Level 3 applies inputs which are not based on observable market data.
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Level 1

Nedgroup Investment Core Income Fund  177,078,084  223,902,345 

Nedgroup Investment Core Income ABIL Retention Fund  1,541,906  6,328,696 

 178,619,990  230,231,041 

7 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Cash on hand  15,052  3,323 

Bank balances  5,332,224  18,392,962 

Short-term deposits  423,354  72,333 

 5,770,630  18,468,618 

8 REVALUATION RESERVE

The revaluation reserve relates to the takeon assets from Jet Education Services on inception of Sci-Bono Discovery Centre NPC for no consideration in the period end-
ed 28 February 2005. The asset taken over, where accounted for at the fair value at the date of transfer.

Opening balance  170,880,173  86,059,123 

Revaluation recognised in the current year  -  86,704,227 

Movement arising from prior year adjustments  -  277,225 

Amortisation of assets during the year (2,712,383)  (2,160,402)

 168,167,790  170,880,173 
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 Restated 
 2018  2017 

 R  R 

9 DEFERRED INCOME (GOVERNMENT GRANTS)

Non-current liabilities 192,925,829  196,088,547 

Current liabilities  4,500,000  105,321,257 

 197,425,829  301,409,804 

Non-current liability portion

Opening balance  196,088,547  199,251,265 

Realisation of deferred income (3,162,718)  (3,162,718)

Closing balance  192,925,829  196,088,547 

Current liability portion

Opening balance  105,321,257  256,784,052 

Recognition of income relating to prior years  -  (19,387,304) 

Grants received during the year  191,326,541  427,939,295 

Realisation of deferred income (292,147,798)  (560,014,786)

Closing balance  4,500,000  105,321,257

Non-current liabilities   
The deferred income relates to government grant received for the construction of phase I and II, which was completed in the financial year ended 28 February 2011. The 
deferred income would be amortised and realised as income over the useful lives of the building. The nature and extent of government grants recognised in the audited 
annual financial statements and an indication of other forms of government assistance from which the entity has directly benefited.

Current liabilities  
The deferred income recognised relates to unfulfilled conditions attached to the grant assistance received. The unfulfilled grant conditions would be completed within the 
next 12 months.
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10 PROVISIONS

Reconciliation of provisions - 2018

Opening  
balance

 Movement  
during the year  Total 

Provision for leave pay 1,193,367  250,179  1,443,546 

Reconciliation of provisions - 2017

Opening  
balance

 Movement  
during the year  Total 

Provision for leave pay 1,208,098  (14,731)  1,193,367 

Restated
2018 2017

R R

11 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables 8,225,769  14,237,765 

Amounts received in advance  -  - 

Payroll accruals  2,329,484  3,293,056 

Other accruals 2,040  1,204,418 

Deposits held  111,372  111,372 

10,668,665  18,846,611 

The average credit period for certain goods is five months. Interest is not charged on these amounts as they are within the credit limits granted by the suppliers. Interest is 
charged at an average rate of 4,5% on overdue outstanding balances. The amount of interest paid on overdue amounts is R1,495 (2017: R13,287).
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 Restated 
 2018  2017 

 R  R 

12 REVENUE

Gate takings  1,650,324  1,253,596 

13 OTHER INCOME

Profit and loss on exchange differences  39,213  (167,693)

Rental income  487,703  541,161 

Insurance refunds  -  205,855 

Reversal of provision for doubtful debts 6,311,118 -

Amortisation of the deferred income  3,162,718  3,162,719 

Venue hire  413,422  1,084,791 

Revenue recognised 13.1  348,244,658  567,819,033 

 358,658,830  572,645,866

13.1 REVENUE RECOGNISED

Donations received from private funders  5,234,519  19,831,125 

Government Grants with conditions - GDE  271,781,957  503,139,634 

Unconditional Government Grants - GDE  19,546,491  10,324,464 

Revenue from prior periods  -  - 

Revenue generated through implemented projects  51,681,691  34,523,810 

 348,244,658  567,819,033 
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Restated
2018 2017

R R

14 OPERATING SURPLUS

Operating surplus for the year is stated after accounting for the following:

Operating lease charges for equipment  766,737  671,592 

- Contractual amounts  -  - 

Reversal of the provision for doubtful debts and adjustment - VAT  (6,311,118)  -

Provision for doubtful debts adjustment – VAT and Other receivables  293,612  5,751,067 

Bad debts written off - VAT  6,870,087  - 

Foreign exchange losses / (gains)  (39,212)  167,693 

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment  611,521  41,448 

Depreciation and amortisation on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets  9,859,648  9,382,350 

 Employee costs 46,749,509  44,396,383

 Total payroll cost 74,889,579 68,866,009

 Payroll cost for personnel deployed in the management of the project (28,140,070) (24,469,626)

 (limited by the allocated funds within the projects budgets)   

Projects related costs 232,705,908 503,002,427

15 INVESTMENT REVENUE

Interest in the investment (call) accounts  19,010,068  25,293,192 

The investment income is generated from two sources, Nedbank Investment Fund and Standard bank Call Account. The Nedbank Investment Fund generated interest at 
annualized total rate of 7,64% and the rate generated by the Standard Bank Call Account is 6,15%.

16 FINANCE COSTS
Bank 1,495  13,287 
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 Restated 
 2018  2017 

 R  R 

17 TAXATION

The company is exempt from taxation as it is a Public Benefit Organisation.

18 AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Internal Audit Fees  479,631  291,525 

Forensic Audits  178,114  456,757 

External Audit Fees  850,481  630,188 

 1,508,226  1,378,470 

19 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Surplus before taxation  35,189,280  83,067,057 

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation  9,708,094  9,382,349 

Other adjustments on expenditure and assets relating prior year -  (396,331)

Revaluation Surplus  -  (86,704,227)

Provision for doubtful debts write-off (6,017,505)  - 

Bad debts written off 6,870,086 -

Disposal of assets  611,521  41,448 

Profit (loss) on foreign exchange  (39,213)  167,693 

Interest received - investment  (19,010,068)  (25,293,192)

Finance costs  1,495  13,287 

Movements in provisions  (3,535,138)  (14,731)

Changes in working capital:

Trade and other receivables 6,559,216 21,733,417 

Trade and other payables (8,177,946) (16,002,863)

Deferred income (Government grants) (100,821,257) (132,075,493)

(78,488,082) (146,081,586)
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20      RELATED PARTIES          

   Relationships     
   The organisation is affiliated with the GDE through a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) dated 07 April 2015.
 
   The MOA states that the primary purpose of the agreement is to facilitate and regulate the working relationship between the GDE and Sci-Bono, and to provide a formal  
   agreement which defines:

• The obligations of the GDE to provide funding to Sci-Bono for the approved science centre operations and GDE projects and
• The obligations of Sci-Bono to effectively implement science centre operations and all the projects and tasks which it undertakes, at the request of the GDE, and with 

resources provided by the GDE.
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 Restated 
 2018  2017 

 R  R 

Related party transactions

Grant income received from related parties

Gauteng Department of Education 191,326,541 398,298,679

Compensation to directors and other key management

Remuneration to directors and other key management  6,998,653 4,691,653 



81

21 DIRECTORS AND PRESCRIBED OFFICERS’ REMUNERATION

Non-executive Directors Remuneration for the 2018 Financial Year

Committee Fees Travel re-imbursive 
expense Total Paid

Mr Abbey Witbooi  122,500  5,720  144,126 

Rev Frank Chikane  10,000  620  10,620 

Ms Gail Campbell  2,500  83  2,583 

Ms Kgabi Manthata  16,000  859  16,859 

Dr Khulekani Sitole  67,000  1,716  68,716 

Adv Lentswe Mokgatle  35,000  2,695  37,695 

Ms Nandipha Daphne Madiba  33,000  656  33,656 

Ms Patricia Maloka  145,500  4,131  149,631 

Prof Bongani Douglas Bantwini  86,000  5,438  91,438 

Mr Sathie Gounden  37,500  756  38,256 

Mr Stephen Tibini  4,000  278  4,278 

Dr Vathiswa Papu-Zamxaka  27,000  3,551  30,551 

Mr Ganelang Zeth Malele  64,000  1,965  65,965 

 650,000  28,468  694,373 

Executive Directors’ Remuneration for the 2018 Financial Year 

Emoluments  Other benefits*  Company  
Contributions ** 

Ms Fikile Mapela  949,738  45,516  129,782 

Mr Anele Davids  937,816  45,516  128,383 

Ms Tebogo Gule  855,271  41,047  118,699 

Dr Morrison Moretsele Chakane  1,328,574  17,798  174,226 

Ms Mbali Mtshali  509,620  6,565  69,079 

Mr Phehello Tsotetsi  839,811  7,949  98,890 

 5,420,830  164,391  719,059 
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Non-executive Directors Remuneration for the 2017 Financial Year

Committee fees Travel re-imbursive 
expense Total paid

Mr Phiroshaw Camay  -  -  - 

Rev Frank Chikane  44,500  1,012  45,512 

Ms Gail Campbell  30,500  -  30,500 

Ms Selemeng Mokose  22,000  -  22,000 

Prof Bongani Douglas Bantwini  45,000  2,417  47,417 

Mr Sathie Gounden  79,000  186  79,186 

Dr Vathiswa Papu-Zamxaka  98,500  5,783 104,283 

Ms Nandipha Daphne Madiba  15,000  254  15,254 

Mr Lentswe Mokgatle  69,500  2,653  72,153 

Mr Ganelang Zeth Malele  28,000  654  28,654 

Ms Patricia Maloka  179,000  3,549 182,549 

Mr Stephen Tibini  18,500  563  19,063 

Ms Val Hellman  2,500  -  2,500 

Dr Khulekani Sitole  37,000  1,130  38,130 

Mr Abbey Witbooi  197,000  2,649 199,649 

Mr Ashley Dickens  20,000  -  20,000 

Ms Kgabi Manthata  18,500  394  18,894 

 904,500  21,245 925,745 

Executive Directors’ Remuneration for the 2017 Financial Year 

Emoluments  Other benefits*  Company  
contributions ** 

Mr Anele  Davids (* )  782,931  90,225  170,707 

Ms Fikile Mapela (*)  880,146  90,225  168,639 

Mr David Kramer (*)  562,073  19,276  77,689 

Ms Tebogo Gule (*)  698,980  63,522  161,495 

 5,420,830  263,249  578,529 

 * Other benefits comprise performance and discretionary bonuses, re-imbursive travelling costs and subsistence.
 ** Company contributions comprise both medical aid and provident funds.
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22 CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

 Financial  
 assets at fair  
value through  
profit or loss  

 Debt  
 instruments at  

 amortised  
 cost 

Financial 
liabilities at 
amortised 

cost

Non financial 
assets and 
liabilities 

 Total 
Note(s)

Categories of financial instruments - 2018

Assets

Current Assets

Trade and other receivables 5 -  434,230  -  34,362,348  34,796,578 

Other financial assets 6  178,619,990  -  -  -  178,619,990 

Cash and cash equivalents 7  -  5,770,630  -  -  5,770,630 

Total Assets  178,619,990  6,204,860  -  34,362,348  219,187,198

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables 11  -  -  -  10,668,665  10,668,665 

Total Liabilities  -  -  -  10,668,665  10,668,665 
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22 CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUES)

 Financial  
assets at fair  
value through  
profit or loss 

 Debt  
instruments at 
amortised cost 

Financial 
liabilities at 
amortised 

cost

Non financial 
assets and 
liabilities

 Total Note(s)

Categories of financial instruments - 2017

Assets

Current Assets

Trade and other receivables 5  -  2,791,573  -  38,564,221  41,355,794 

Other financial assets 6  230,231,041  -  -  -  230,231,041 

Cash and cash equivalents 7  -  18,468,618  -  -  18,468,618 

Total Assets  230,231,041  21,260,191 -  38,564,221 290,055,453

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables 11  -  - -  18,846,611  18,846,611 

Total Liabilities  -  - - 18,846,611 18,846,611
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23 RISK MANAGEMENT

24

Capital risk management     
The company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the company’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns and benefits for 
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. The capital structure of the company consists of cash and cash equivalents 
disclosed in note 7, and reserves as disclosed in the statement of financial position.
 
There are no externally imposed capital requirements.   
 
Financial risk management     
The company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, cash flow interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
 
Interest rate risk     
As the company has no significant interest-bearing assets, the company’s income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market  
interest rates.

Credit risk     
Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents and trade debtors. The company only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing 
and limits exposure to any one counter-party.
 
No credit limits were exceeded during the reporting period, and management does not expect any losses from non-performance by these counterparties.   
  
Foreign exchange risk     
The company does not hedge foreign exchange fluctuations. 

GOING CONCERN  
The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis presumes that funds will be available to 
finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of 
business.

     

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 28 FEBRUARY 2018



86

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Assets

No impact on the current and non-current assets of the organisation

Reserves and Liabilities

Retained Surplus -  19,387,304 

Current Liabilities

Deferred income (Government grants) -  (19,387,304)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

No impact on the Statement of Financial Performance

Restated
2018 2017

R R

25 TOTAL EXPENDITURE

Total expenditure comprises both expenditure incurred in the management of projects implemented with the conditional grants 

received and the cost incurred in the day to day management of the organisation:

Operational expenditure  83,109,116  75,344,482 

Projects related expenditure  260,845,978  527,472,053 

343,955,094  602,816,535 

26 PRIOR PERIOD ERROR

A prior period error has been recognised on the Annual Financial Statements arising from the prior financial years. It relates to 
revenue that should have been recognised in the financial years prior to commencement of the 2017 financial year.

The revenue relates to the projects that were delivered in the prior financial years and costs related thereto inadequately  
recognised against the funding received.
  
The recognition of this error has no bearing on future receipts, only resulted in an increment in opening reserves. 
The impact of the error is as follows on the face of the Annual Financial Statements:   
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25 TOTAL EXPENDITURE

Total expenditure comprises both expenditure incurred in the management of projects implemented with the conditional grants 

received and the cost incurred in the day to day management of the organisation:

Operational expenditure  83,109,116  75,344,482 

Projects related expenditure  260,845,978  527,472,053 

343,955,094  602,816,535 

26 PRIOR PERIOD ERROR

A prior period error has been recognised on the Annual Financial Statements arising from the prior financial years. It relates to 
revenue that should have been recognised in the financial years prior to commencement of the 2017 financial year.

The revenue relates to the projects that were delivered in the prior financial years and costs related thereto inadequately  
recognised against the funding received.
  
The recognition of this error has no bearing on future receipts, only resulted in an increment in opening reserves. 
The impact of the error is as follows on the face of the Annual Financial Statements:   

The activities of the Sci-Bono Discovery Centre 
are funded primarily by the GDE. Thank you to our 
colleagues at the GDE for their continued support 
and encouragement. Sci-Bono also received valuable 
support from its partners in the private sector and 
from the local and international community. 

DONOR LIST
1. AFROX 

2. Charities Aid Foundation 

3. Gauteng Department of Education 

4. Export Credit Insurance Corporation 

5. Rand Water Foundation 

6. Denel Dynamics 

7. South32 

8. Ledvance South Africa 

9. Dell 

10. World Biotechnology 

11. Concor

12.  Royal Society of Chemistry SA (RSC)

THANK YOU TO OUR DONORS
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Sci-Bono Discovery Centre

C/o Miriam Makeba & Helen Joseph Streets 
Newtown | Johannesburg
PO Box 61882 | Marshalltown | 2107

Tel: +27 (0)11 639 8400 
Fax: +27 (0)11 832 3360

www.sci-bono.co.za




